
Page 1 of 3
09/17/2020   MCWD Regular Board Meeting 

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 597 

Mammoth Lakes, California 93546-0597 

771st Regular Meeting of the   Thursday, September 17, 2020 
Mammoth Community Water District  
Board of Directors 

Please Note: 
Members of the public will have the opportunity to directly address the District Board of Directors 

concerning any item listed on the Agenda below before or during consideration of that item. 

In accordance with the California Department of Public Health’s and Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders N-29-20 and 
N-33-20, the District boardroom is closed and this meeting will be conducted solely by video/teleconference with

members of the Board attending from separate remote locations in response to the threat of COVID-19.  The public is 
invited to listen, observe, and provide comments during the meeting by either method provided for below. The Board 
President will call for public comment on each agenda item at the appropriate time and all votes will be taken by roll 

call. 

For members of the public interested in viewing and having the ability to comment at the public meeting via Zoom, an 
internet enabled computer equipped with a microphone and speaker or a mobile device with a data plan is required. Use 

of a webcam is optional. You also may call in to the meeting using teleconference without video. Directors, staff, and 
members of the public who wish to participate in the meeting may do so by joining the following Zoom Videoconference 

Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/7609342596 (meeting ID: 760 934 2596) OR 
Join via teleconference by dialing 1-669-600-9128, 760-934-2596# 

AGENDA 

5:30 P.M. 

Roll Call 

Directors Cage, Creasy, Domaille, Smith, and Thompson 

Public Forum 

Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction. This need not be 
related to any item on the agenda, and presentation should be limited to five (5) minutes. No formal action by the Board will 
be taken on these items. 



 

 Page 2 of 3 
09/17/2020    MCWD Regular Board Meeting 

 

Consent Agenda A 

 All matters listed are considered to be routine by the Board and may be enacted on by one motion.  There will be no separate 
discussion on these items unless requested by the Board.  If discussion is requested, that item will be moved and considered 
separately after adoption of the consent agenda. 

 
A-1  Approval of August 2020 Check Disbursements (Springbrook #’s 58023 – 58147) 
A-2  Approval of Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held August 20, 2020 

Consent Agenda B — Staff Reports  

All matters listed are considered to be routine by the Board and may be acted on by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion on these items unless requested by the Board. If discussion is requested, that item will be moved and considered 
separately after adoption of the consent agenda. 

 
B-1  Operations Department Report  

B-2  Maintenance Department Report  

B-3  Finance Department Report  

B-4  Engineering Department Report  

B-5  Information Services Report  

B-6  Personnel Services Report  

B-7  Regulatory Support Services Report  

B-8  General Manager’s Report  

Current Business 

C-1   Discussion and Possible Approval of “Stories in the Snow” Sponsorship 
 
C-2   Discussion and Possible Approval of a Request to Refinance a Primary Loan under the Employee Home 
Purchase Assistance Program    
 
C-3   Discussion and Possible Approval of a Lease Extension with the USGS   
 
C-4   Discussion and Possible Approval of Updating the Records Retention and Disposal Schedules    

 
C-5   Appointment of Ad Hoc Committees                                       
        a)  General Manager Performance Evaluation 
          b)  Labor Negotiations 

Board Member’s Committee Reports 

Committee Meetings Held: 

Technical Services Committee – September 16, 2020 
Finance Committee – September 16, 2020 



 

 Page 3 of 3 
09/17/2020    MCWD Regular Board Meeting 

 

Director Comments, Requests, and Reports  

Attorney’s Report 

Closed Session 

D-1   Conference with Real Property Negotiators  
Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54954.5(e) and 54956.8 
Property Description: Mono County APNs – 035-100-003; 035-010-020; 022-322-035 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment 
MCWD Negotiators:  Mark Busby, Garrett Higerd, and Tom Cage 
Property Owner Negotiator:  Town of Mammoth Lakes 
 
D-2   Conference with Legal Counsel 
Existing Litigation – Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(a); International Union of Operating 
Engineers, Local 12 v. Mammoth Community Water District; Public Employment Relations Board 
 

Adjournment 

 
NOTE:  Items listed on the agenda may be reviewed or acted upon by the Board in any order or sequence.  The items are listed 
for identification purposes only. 
 
The meeting will be held in the conference room at the District facility located one mile east of Old Mammoth Road on 
Meridian Boulevard, just off Highway 203, Mammoth Lakes, California. 

 
 
 

                   
         

MARK BUSBY                                                                                       
General Manager  

 
Date of Issuance:  Friday, September 11, 2020  
 
Posted: MCWD Office 

MCWD Website:  www.mcwd.dst.ca.us 
        cc:   Members, Board of Directors 
              Town of Mammoth Lakes 
              KMMT, KIBS, KSRW Radio 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a disability related modification or accommodation to participate in 
this meeting please call Stephanie Hake at (760) 934-2596 at least one full day before the meeting. 
Documents and material relating to an open session agenda item that are provided to the Mammoth Community Water District Board of 
Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting will be available for public inspection and copying at the District facility located at 
1315 Meridian Boulevard, Mammoth Lakes, California. 



09/16/2020   MCWD Finance Committee Meeting 

 
MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 597 
Mammoth Lakes, California 93546-0597 

NOTICE OF A FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors of the 
Mammoth Community Water District will hold a FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING on 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2020 at 1:00 P.M.  

 
Please Note: 

Members of the public will have the opportunity to directly address the District Board of Directors  
concerning any item listed on the Agenda below before or during consideration of that item. 

 
In accordance with the California Department of Public Health’s and Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders N-29-20 

and N-33-20, the District boardroom is closed and this meeting will be conducted solely by video/teleconference with 
members of the Board attending from separate remote locations in response to the threat of COVID-19. The public is 
invited to listen, observe, and provide comments during the meeting by either method provided for below. The Board 
President will call for public comment on each agenda item at the appropriate time and all votes will be taken by roll 

call. 
 

For members of the public interested in viewing and having the ability to comment at the public meeting via Zoom, 
an internet enabled computer equipped with a microphone and speaker or a mobile device with a data plan is 
required. Use of a webcam is optional. You also may call in to the meeting using teleconference without video. 

Directors, staff, and members of the public who wish to participate in the meeting may do so by joining the following 
Zoom Videoconference Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/7609342596 (meeting ID: 760 934 2596) OR join via 

teleconference by dialing 1-669-600-9128, 760-934-2596#.  
 

 

The agenda items are: 
 

1. Review and Approval of Board of Director Payment Requests for August 2020 

2. Review and Approval of Accounts Payable Payment Vouchers for August 2020  

3. Discussion and Review of August 2020 Check Register  (A-1) 

4. Discussion of Finance Department Report  (B-3) 

5. Discussion of Request to Refinance a Primary Loan under the Employee Home Purchase 

Assistance Program  (C-2) 

6. Discussion of Possible Approval of a Lease Extension with the USGS  (C-3) 

7. Discussion / Questions Regarding Other Department Reports 

B-1   Operations Department Report 
B-2   Maintenance Department Report 

https://zoom.us/j/7609342596


09/16/2020   MCWD Finance Committee Meeting 

B-4   Engineering Department Report 
B-5   Information Services Report 
B-6   Personnel Services Report 
B-7   Regulatory Support Services Report 
B-8   General Manager’s Report 

 
 
 
 
The meeting will be held in the conference room at the District facility located one mile east of Old Mammoth Road on 
Meridian Boulevard, just off Highway 203, Mammoth Lakes, California. 
 

 

 
               
         

MARK BUSBY                                                                                       
General Manager 

 
 
Date of Issuance:  Friday, September 11, 2020 
 
 
 
Posted: MCWD Office 
 MCWD Website:  www.mcwd.dst.ca.us 
        cc:   Members, Board of Directors 
              Town of Mammoth Lakes 
              KMMT, KIBS, KSRW Radio 
 
If you are an individual with a disability and need assistance or accommodation to participate in this Board meeting at any time, please 
call Stephanie Hake at (760) 934-2596, ext. 321, or email Ms. Hake at: shake@mcwd.dst.ca.us. 

 
Documents and material relating to an open session agenda item that are provided to the Mammoth Community Water District 
Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting will be available for public inspection and copying at the District 
facility located at 1315 Meridian Boulevard, Mammoth Lakes, California. 

mailto:


09/16/2020    MCWD Technical Services Committee Meeting 

 
 

 
MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 597 
Mammoth Lakes, California 93546-0597 

NOTICE OF A TECHNICAL SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Technical Services Committee of the Board of Directors of 
the Mammoth Community Water District will hold a TECHNICAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
MEETING to be held WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2020 at 8:00 A.M. 
 

 
Please Note: 

Members of the public will have the opportunity to directly address the District Board of Directors  
concerning any item listed on the Agenda below before or during consideration of that item. 

 

In accordance with the California Department of Public Health’s and Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders N-29-20 
and N-33-20, the District boardroom is closed and this meeting will be conducted solely by video/teleconference with 
members of the Board attending from separate remote locations in response to the threat of COVID-19.  The public is 
invited to listen, observe, and provide comments during the meeting by either method provided for below. The Board 
President will call for public comment on each agenda item at the appropriate time and all votes will be taken by roll 

call. 
 

For members of the public interested in viewing and having the ability to comment at the public meeting via Zoom, 
an internet enabled computer equipped with a microphone and speaker or a mobile device with a data plan is 
required. Use of a webcam is optional. You also may call in to the meeting using teleconference without video. 

Directors, staff, and members of the public who wish to participate in the meeting may do so by joining the following 
Zoom Videoconference Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/7609342596 (meeting ID: 760 934 2596) OR join via 

teleconference by dialing 1-669-600-9128, 760-934-2596#.  
 
 

The agenda items are: 
 

1. Review of the Operations Department Report  (B-1) 

2. Review of the Maintenance Department Report  (B-2) 

3. Review of the Engineering Department Report  (B-4) 

4. Review of the Information Services Report  (B-5) 

5. Discussion / Questions Regarding Other Department Reports 

B-3   Finance Department Report 
B-6   Personnel Services Report 
B-7   Regulatory Support Services Report 
B-8   General Manager’s Report 

 
 

https://zoom.us/j/7609342596


09/16/2020    MCWD Technical Services Committee Meeting 

 
 

The meeting will be held in the conference room at the District facility located one mile east of Old Mammoth Road on 
Meridian Boulevard, just off Highway 203, Mammoth Lakes, California. 
 

 
               
         

MARK BUSBY                                                                                       
General Manager 

 
 
Date of Issuance:  Friday, September 11, 2020 
 
 
 
Posted: MCWD Office 
 MCWD Website:  www.mcwd.dst.ca.us 
        cc:   Members, Board of Directors 
              Town of Mammoth Lakes 
              KMMT, KIBS, KSRW Radio 
 
If you are an individual with a disability and need assistance or accommodation to participate in this Board meeting at any time, please 
call Stephanie Hake at (760) 934-2596, ext. 321, or email Ms. Hake at: shake@mcwd.dst.ca.us. 

 
Documents and material relating to an open session agenda item that are provided to the Mammoth Community Water District 
Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting will be available for public inspection and copying at the District 
facility located at 1315 Meridian Boulevard, Mammoth Lakes, California. 
 
 

       
 

mailto:


  Agenda Item: A-1 
  September 17, 2020 
   
 
 
 
 

 
 

Check Register for the Month of August 2020 
 
  
 

Springbrook Software Report 
 

(Check #58023 - #58147)  
 



MCWD Accounts Payable
Check Register Notes

August 2020

Check # Amount Vendor Notes
58053 $32,252.50 Water Works Engineers Permitting Assistance and WDR Review
58056 $18,883.52 MCS Inspection Tank 6 Inspection
58081 $119,109.10 Simpson Sandblasting & Special Coatings Tank 6 Rehab 
58090 $12,367.50 Accelerated Technology Laboratires, Inc. Annual LIMS Software SaaS  License Fee
58110 $6,275.69 Sierra Automated Valve Services, Inc. Replacement Check Valves for Twin Falls and West Lake 

Mary Lift Stations
58122 $4,000.00 Eastern California Water Association Sponsorship of Inyo-Mono Integrated Regional Water 

Management Program
58145 $68,842.00 Backflow Solutions, Inc. 2020 Backflow Survey
58146 $53,650.00 Process Water Technologies, LLC Sludge Dewatering Press (10% Payment)
58147 $256,105.29 Yellow Jacket Drilling Well 32 Drilling Services

Rebates

17 customers purchased 24 high efficiency toilets and received rebates totaling $4,379.52

2 customers purchased high efficiency washing machines and received rebates totaling $800.00

4 customers purchased high efficiency dishwashers and received rebates totaling $800.00

Payroll Expenses

$284,566.95
Board Gross Payroll: $3,044.25

$201,975.23

$4,395.15

$56,913.39 (20% of Gross)

$5,433.51 (1.91 % of Gross)

$30,493.89 (10.71% of Gross)

$81,161.57Other Employer Paid Benefits:

Employee Gross Payroll:

Net Payroll:

Employer Paid Payroll Taxes:

Employer Paid 401a:

Employer Paid 457b Match:

Employee Paid 457b:





































Visa Purchases - July 1 September Board Meeting

Merchant Name Fund GL Acct Cardholder
Trans. 
Date  Amount Description

DIRECTV 10-110-6023  M. VENDORS 7/3 121.99        Eng. Bldg. Satellite Service
GOOD LIFE 10-110-6023  M. BUSBY 7/21 53.66          Employee engagement lunch
GOOD LIFE 10-110-6023  M. BUSBY 7/27 43.93          Lunch w/new District Engineer

10-110-6023   Total 219.58        
EMS.COM 10-110-6024  M. BUSBY 7/22 127.13        Work boots

10-110-6024   Total 127.13        
ZOOM.US 10-110-6105 J. MULBAY 7/2 104.93        MCWD Zoom Accounts
ZOOM.US 10-110-6105 S. HAKE 7/2 54.99          Virtual Meetings
ZOOM.US 10-110-6105 J. MULBAY 7/24 3.87            MCWD Zoom Accounts
ADOBE 10-110-6105  S. HAKE 7/3 14.99          Monthly Software - M. Reeves
ADOBE 10-110-6105  S. HAKE 7/27 14.99          Monthly Software

10-110-6105 Total 193.77        
HOMEDEPOT 10-110-6150 R. MOTLEY 7/28 32.29          HEPA vacuum hose
HOMEDEPOT 10-110-6150 R. MOTLEY 7/29 208.97        HEPA vacuum - admin bldg project
HOMEDEPOT 10-110-6150 R. MOTLEY 7/29 (49.76)         refund undelivered parts
HOMEDEPOT 10-110-6150  R. MOTLEY 7/28 49.76          HEPA vacuum - admin bldg project

10-110-6150 Total 241.26        
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/8 213.31        Office Supplies
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/8 76.49          Office Supplies
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/8 76.49          Office Supplies
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/14 76.49          Office Supplies
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/17 183.46        Office Supplies
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/18 46.74          Office Supplies
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/21 24.77          Office Supplies
BESTBUY 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/21 31.24          Office Supplies
NAAGTAG 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/23 20.50          Name Plates
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/25 45.99          Office Supplies
AMAZON 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/28 20.42          Office Supplies
STAPLES 10-110-6180  S. HAKE 7/29 60.21          Office Supplies

10-110-6180   Total 876.11        
NEWEGG 10-110-6181 S. HAKE 7/8 220.59        Webcams for Zoom Meetings
NEWEGG 10-110-6181 S. HAKE 7/22 160.84        Webcams for Zoom Meetings
NEWEGG 10-110-6181 S. HAKE 7/29 215.46        Webcams for Zoom Meetings
DELL 10-110-6181  M. VENDORS 7/28 1,551.55    Laptop - M. Busby

10-110-6181 Total 2,148.44    
UPS 10-110-6185  M. VENDORS 7/6 15.50          Service Fee
UPS 10-110-6185  M. VENDORS 7/13 31.00          Service Fee
UPS 10-110-6185  M. VENDORS 7/20 31.00          Service Fee
UPS 10-110-6185  M. VENDORS 7/27 15.50          Service Fee

10-110-6185   Total 93.00          
AMAZON 10-110-6192 E. HYLTON 7/15 21.53          Sierra Plant Book

10-110-6192 Total 21.53          
APPLE.COM 10-110-6210  M. BUSBY 7/20 0.99            Cell phone data storage

10-110-6210   Total 0.99            



Visa Purchases - July 2 September Board Meeting

Merchant Name Fund GL Acct Cardholder
Trans. 
Date  Amount Description

ADOBE 10-120-6105  M. BRETZ 7/1 14.99          Adobe Acrobat - July
ADOBE 10-120-6105  M. BRETZ 7/28 14.99          Adobe Acrobat - August

10-120-6105   Total 29.98          
AMAZON 10-120-6180 H. CHRISTENSEN 7/28 22.51          Printer Cartridge
AMAZON 10-120-6180 M. LOGAN 7/29 47.04          Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 10-120-6180  M. LOGAN 7/20 26.83          Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 10-120-6180  M. LOGAN 7/22 29.00          Fraudulent Charge

10-120-6180 Total 125.38        
NEWEGG 10-120-6181 J. BEATTY 6/30 61.84          Web-cam for virtual meetings

10-120-6181 Total 61.84          
BORDER FEE 10-130-6105  J. MULBAY 7/18 0.08            Tockify Web calendar fee
TOCKIFY 10-130-6105  J. MULBAY 7/18 8.00            Tockify Web calendar

10-130-6105   Total 8.08            
NIK-N-WILLIES 10-130-6215 J. BURKHART 7/20 26.28          Lunch Meeting - BSI, Inc.

10-130-6215 Total 26.28          
TRANSITTALENT 10-160-6190  C. WEIBERT 7/15 145.00        R and E 20-010 PMMT
B & C 10-160-6190  C. WEIBERT 7/15 200.00        R and E 20-010 PMMT

10-160-6190   Total 345.00        
CONFCALL 20-110-6210 S. HAKE 6/30 4.17            Conference Call
CONFCALL 20-110-6210 S. HAKE 7/14 5.93            Conference Call
CONFCALL 20-110-6210 S. HAKE 7/28 5.19            Conference Call

20-110-6210 Total 15.29          
HOMEDEPOT 20-140-6150  C. MURRAY 6/30 36.94          Door bell for lab customers
ZORO TOOLS 20-140-6150  R. MOTLEY 7/11 285.35        spare motor-Lab HVAC unit

20-140-6150   Total 322.29        
AT&T DATA 20-150-6210  M. VENDORS 7/13 35.00          Clays iPad Data Plan

20-150-6210   Total 35.00          
ADOBE 20-170-6105  R. MOTLEY 7/13 14.99          monthly deskstop sub.
ADOBE 20-170-6105  K. BEDOW 7/28 14.99          Editing Software Subscription

20-170-6105   Total 29.98          
DELL 20-170-6181  M. VENDORS 7/30 2,206.70    Fraudulent Charge

20-170-6181   Total 2,206.70    
DELL 20-210-6181  M. VENDORS 7/28 775.77        Laptop - Engineering

20-210-6181   Total 775.77        
UPS 20-210-6185  M. VENDORS 7/6 11.96          Shipping Charge

20-210-6185   Total 11.96          
OUTDOORS 365 20-220-6024  G. VANORSDOL 7/30 10.92          Work clothing

20-220-6024   Total 10.92          
OUTDOORS 365 20-230-6024  G. VANORSDOL 7/30 10.93          Work clothing

20-230-6024   Total 10.93          
VONS 20-245-6023  K. WEILAND 7/24 34.47          Drinks - Ee engagement lunch
GIOVANNIS 20-245-6023  K. WEILAND 7/24 106.25        Pizze for Ee Lunch

20-245-6023   Total 140.72        
AMAZON 20-245-6024  M. LOGAN 7/18 150.81        Work Boots - J. Guarneros



Visa Purchases - July 3 September Board Meeting

Merchant Name Fund GL Acct Cardholder
Trans. 
Date  Amount Description

20-245-6024   Total 150.81        
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/2 (17.23)         Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/2 17.23          Fraudulent Charge
HULU 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/3 (5.99)           Fraudulent Charge
HULU 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/3 5.99            Fraudulent Charge
DISNEY+ 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/5 (12.99)         Fraudulent Charge
DISNEY+ 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/5 12.99          Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 (53.86)         Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 (14.00)         Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 (17.23)         Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 53.86          Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 14.00          Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 8.61            Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 6.45            Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 17.23          Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 (8.61)           Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6100  P. ROSS 7/6 (6.45)           Fraudulent Charge

20-245-6100   Total 0.00
AMAZON 20-245-6180  R. GONZALEZ 7/5 14.00          Fraudulent Charge
HULU 20-245-6180  R. GONZALEZ 7/6 5.99            Fraudulent Charge
AMAZON 20-245-6180  R. GONZALEZ 7/8 21.54          Fraudulent Charge

20-245-6180   Total 41.53          
RED WING 20-255-6024  R. LARSON 7/17 225.00        work boots bobby

20-255-6024   Total 225.00        
HOMEDEPOT 20-255-6120 M. LOGAN 7/21 181.02        Shop Vac

20-255-6120 Total 181.02        
CONFCALL 22-000-1410 S. HAKE 7/9 13.19          Conference Call - Well 32
SENSAPHONE 22-000-1410 R. MOTLEY 7/30 67.86          cell contract - remote samplers

22-000-1410 Total 81.05          
VEL SYSTEMS 23-000-1410 R. MOTLEY 7/10 63.72          freight - flow meter radio parts

23-000-1410 Total 63.72          
FILTERS FAST 30-140-6145  H. WALDEN 7/6 100.42        Replacement filters - WWTP/Lab

30-140-6145   Total 100.42        
UPS 30-140-6185  M. VENDORS 7/6 61.58          Shipping Charge
UPS 30-140-6185  M. VENDORS 7/13 60.15          Shipping Charge
UPS 30-140-6185  M. VENDORS 7/20 46.78          Shipping Charge
UPS 30-140-6185  M. VENDORS 7/27 140.31        Shipping Charge

30-140-6185   Total 308.82        
DELL 30-310-6181  M. VENDORS 7/28 775.77        Laptop - Engineering

30-310-6181   Total 775.77        
ADOBE 30-320-6105 S. SORNOSO 7/2 12.99          Monthly Subscription
ADOBE 30-320-6105  T. NELSON 7/15 12.99          Adobe Acrobat Subscription

30-320-6105 Total 25.98          
UPS 30-320-6185  M. VENDORS 7/6 20.69          Shipping Charge



Visa Purchases - July 4 September Board Meeting

Merchant Name Fund GL Acct Cardholder
Trans. 
Date  Amount Description

30-320-6185   Total 20.69          
CWEA 30-345-6160  R. GONZALEZ 7/15 288.00        Certificate renewal  for C2
CWEA 30-345-6160  R. GONZALEZ 7/24 205.00        C3 test for Robert

30-345-6160   Total 493.00        
UPS 30-345-6185  M. VENDORS 7/27 87.66          Shipping Charge

30-345-6185   Total 87.66          
ZOOM.US 96-000-6115 C. WEIBERT 7/28 14.99          LAbri Board Meeting

96-000-6115 Total 14.99          

Grand Total 10,648.39  



Agenda Item A-2 
09-17-2020 

  
Minutes 08-20-2020  

Page 1 of 6 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

Thursday, August 20, 2020 
Mammoth Community Water District 

Regular Board Meeting  
 

 
The Board of Directors convened in session at the hour of 5:39 p.m.  No recess was taken and the meeting was 
adjourned at 6:51 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 Prepared by: 
 
 
 
 
 Stephanie Hake 
 Executive Assistant 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
Mark Busby 
Board Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item A-2 
09-17-2020 

  
Minutes 08-20-2020  

Page 2 of 6 
 

THE REGULAR MEETING of the Board of Directors of the Mammoth Community Water District held on Thursday, 
August 20 2020 at 5:39 p.m. 
 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Board Present * 
Director:  Tom Cage 
Director:  Robert Creasy (arrived at 5:42 p.m.) 
Director:  Tom Smith  
Director:  Gary Thompson 
 
Board Absent 
Director:  Dennis Domaille  
 
Staff Present * 
General Manager:  Mark Busby 
District Engineer:  Garrett Higerd  
Operations Superintendent:  Clay Murray  
Information Services Manager:  Justin Mulbay 
Finance Manager:  Jeff Beatty 
Administrative Analyst:  Betty Hylton 
Administrative Analyst:  Chris Weibert 
Executive Assistant:  Stephanie Hake 
District Counsel:  Joshua Horowitz  
 
 
Guests Present * 
Richard Teaman - Teaman, Ramirez and Smith, Inc. 
Rick Gallo - Teaman, Ramirez and Smith, Inc. 
 

 
* As a result of the threat of COVID-19, the Governor issued Executive Order N-25-20 dated March 12, 2020 allowing for 
Directors, staff, and members of the public to attend this public meeting via teleconference without strict compliance with 
the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements. To maximize public participation, comply with Brown Act requirements, 
and provide a clear record of the meeting, public comment was made available for each agenda item and all action items 
were voted on by roll call. 
 

 

PUBLIC FORUM 
 
President Smith opened the public forum at 5:39 p.m. 

No one addressed the Board and President Smith closed the public forum at 5:39 p.m. 

 

 

 
 
 



Agenda Item A-2 
09-17-2020 

  
Minutes 08-20-2020  

Page 3 of 6 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
President Smith opened the public hearing to receive comments concerning the filing of reports on delinquent 

water and sewer charges as of June 30, 2020 at 5:41 p.m. 

No one addressed the Board and President Smith closed the public hearing at 5:41 p.m. 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA A 
 

A-1   Approval of July 2020 Check Disbursements (Springbrook #’s 57876 – 58022) 
A-2   Approval of Minutes from the Special Board Meeting held July 9, 2020 
A-3   Approval of Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held July 16, 2020 
A-4   Changing the Date of the October Board Meeting from October 15, 2020 at 5:30 P.M. to October 22, 2020 
at 5:30 P.M. 
 
There was no discussion and Director Thompson made a motion.    
 
BOARD ACTION – To approve Consent Agenda A  
 
MOVED BY: Director Thompson   
SECONDED BY:     Director Cage 
AYES: Directors Cage, Smith, and Thompson 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Directors Creasy and Domaille 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA B – STAFF REPORTS  
 

B-1  Operations Department Report  

B-2  Maintenance Department Report 

B-3  Finance Department Report 

B-4  Engineering Department Report 

B-5  Information Services Report 

B-6  Personnel Services Report 

B-7  Regulatory Support Services Report 

B-8  General Manager’s Report  

  
Director Cage made a motion.  
 
BOARD ACTION – To approve Consent Agenda B  
 
MOVED BY: Director Cage   
SECONDED BY:     Director Thompson 
AYES: Directors Cage, Creasy, Smith, and Thompson 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Director Domaille 



Agenda Item A-2 
09-17-2020 

  
Minutes 08-20-2020  

Page 4 of 6 
 

CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

C-1   Discussion and Possible Adoption of Resolution No. 08-20-20-09 Confirming Collection and Requesting 
Inclusion of Delinquent Rates, Charges and Penalties for Water and Sewer Service on the Mono County Tax Roll 
for the Forthcoming Fiscal Year in the Same Manner as the District’s General Taxes 
 
Jeff Beatty noted that one of the property owners on the list originally provided to the Board members had paid 
the delinquent amount earlier in the day; therefore the final list would need to be amended before being 
submitted to Mono County.  
 
The Finance Committee had asked Mr. Beatty to report on how delinquent the accounts on the list were and if 
there were any that might be on the list as a result of impacts from COVID-19. Mr. Beatty reported that the 
youngest delinquent account was two years old and the oldest was eleven years old. He also confirmed that 
none of the referenced accounts were on the list as a result of impacts due to COVID-19.  
 
There was no further discussion. Director Cage made a motion.  
 
BOARD ACTION – To adopt Resolution No. 08-20-20-09 confirming collection and requesting inclusion of 
delinquent rates, charges and penalties for Water and Sewer Service on the Mono County Tax Roll for the 
forthcoming fiscal year in the same manner as the District’s general taxes with the amended list  
 
MOVED BY: Director Cage   
SECONDED BY:     Director Thompson 
AYES: Directors Cage, Creasy, Smith, and Thompson 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Director Domaille 
 
 
C-2   Presentation, Discussion and Filing of the 2019-2020 Financial Audit  
 •    Richard Teaman, CPA, Teaman, Ramirez, & Smith, Inc. 
 
Richard Teaman addressed the Board by describing the goal of the auditor is to issue an opinion on the District’s 
financial statements and that his firm was issuing an “unmodified” report on the District’s fiscal year 2020 
financial statements, which is the highest rating available in accordance with GAAP (Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles) and the same rating as the previous year.  An “unmodified” report indicates that financial 
information is being reported properly and with full disclosures.  
 
Mr. Teaman then provided a thorough review of the Draft 2019-2020 Financial Audit; highlighting that staff did 
a great job of clearing up minor issues from past years. He noted that there were no items listed in the Internal 
Control report.      
 
Director Cage requested that item no. 9 (LADWP Settlement Funding), Commitments and Contingencies, under 
Notes to Financial Statements be amended to include: 

1. The actual CPI (Consumer Price Index) percentage and what the actual escalation rate used was.  
2. The estimated increase to the adjusted extension payment.  

 
In closing, Board members expressed compliments to the Finance Department staff for their thorough preparation 
and appreciation to Mr. Teaman and his team for their time. 



Agenda Item A-2 
09-17-2020 

  
Minutes 08-20-2020  

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
President Smith called for a motion. 
 
BOARD ACTION – To accept the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Draft Financial Audit dated 08/04/2020 amended to 
include the requested information. 
 
MOVED BY: Director Creasy   
SECONDED BY:     Director Cage 
AYES: Directors Cage, Creasy, Smith, and Thompson 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT:  Director Domaille 
 

 
Committee Meetings Held During the Month 
Technical Services Committee – August 19, 2020 
 Gary Thompson 
 Tom Cage (alternate) 
Finance Committee – August 19, 2020 
 Tom Cage  
 Robert Creasy 
 
Technical Services Committee:   

Director Thompson reported that the committee discussed the update of the Well 32 project and that the USGS is 
wanting to install a new 60 foot radio tower on District property. Mark Busby added that the USGS lease 
agreement with MCWD for office space and an exterior facility expired June 30, 2020 and that the two parties are 
working to renew the lease. Directors Smith and Cage commented that the proposed USGS tower is not something 
that they would support in its current design.  

~   

Finance Committee:   

Director Creasy reiterated compliments to the Finance Department for a very successful audit.  

 

 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS, REQUESTS, AND REPORTS 

 
Director Cage extended his compliments to all staff at MCWD for their professionalism; notably staff in the field 
and the way disruptions in the community are handled during the construction season. He said he is proud to be 
part of a well-run business. President Smith echoed his comments.   

 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
Attorney Horowitz said there was nothing notable to report.  
 
 
 



Agenda Item A-2 
09-17-2020 

  
Minutes 08-20-2020  

Page 6 of 6 
 

The Board members went into closed session at 6:31 p.m. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
D-1   Property Negotiations – Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54954.5(e) and 54956.8 
Consultation with Legal Counsel – Pursuant to Government Code section 54957(a) 
Property Description: Mono County APN – 035-090-018-000 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment 
MCWD Negotiators:  Mark Busby, John Pedersen, and Tom Cage 
Property Owner Negotiator:  Paul Rudder 
 
 

                                                           ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Board adjourned out of closed session at 6:51 p.m. 
 
It was reported from closed session that Garrett Higerd would replace John Pedersen as one of the MCWD 
negotiators under item D-1 Property Negotiations.  
 
President Smith adjourned the meeting at 6:51 p.m.   



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT           Agenda Item: B-1          

Operations Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 1 of 7                                                                                                                   Clay Murray – Operations Superintendent MCWD 
 

 
            

Monthly - Water Treatment, Production & Supply Management 
 

• Drinking Water Treatment 
Routine samples for clarity, chlorine residual, and bacteriological analysis of the District’s drinking water were 
conducted during the month. The results of all sampling for the month were in compliance with the standards set by 
the State Water Resources Control Board Drinking Water Division. A total of 101,777,000 gallons were treated for 
drinking water with an average of 3.28 million gallons per day.  

 
 

• Water Supply Production and Management  
The total volume of water distributed to the community (including golf course irrigation) during the month of July was 
123,820,000 gallons. This amounts to an average demand rate of 3.99 million gallons per day. Drinking water provided 
to the community was produced from the District’s surface water (23%) and groundwater (77%) treatment plants. 
Sierra Star and Snowcreek golf courses purchased 22,043,000 gallons of water for irrigation produced by entirely 
recycled wastewater. 
 
 

Report Summary
August Production Data (In Million Gallons) 2013 2019 2020

Treated Surface Water 30.6 83.9 23.1
Treated Groundwater 81.8 13.8 78.7
Untreated Groundwater 11.2 0.0 0.0
Reclaimed Wastewater 8.5 11.9 22.0
                                                           Totals 132.2 109.6 123.8

Non-Revenue Water 9.8 6.6 11.2
Treated Wastewater 40.3 47.9 45.7
Photovoltaic Power Produced (kWh) 233,068 225,160 187,040
Photovoltaic Solar Irradiance (kW/m²) 1,123 1,142 943



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT           Agenda Item: B-1          

Operations Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 2 of 7                                                                                                                   Clay Murray – Operations Superintendent MCWD 
 

 
 

• Surface Water 
The minimum daily stream flow requirement for the month of August was 7.2cfs for Mammoth Creek, as measured 
at Old Mammoth Road. Flow rates in the creek ranged from 6.2cfs to 9.0cfs with an average flow of 7.3cfs. The average 
flow for August 2019 was 22.3cfs. The flow requirement for September decreases to 5.5cfs and current flows are close 
to the requirement. Water was used from storage when Mammoth Creek flows were below the streamflow 
requirement. A total of 54 ac/ft of water was used from Lake Mary storage and the lake is now -1.78’ from full with a 
balance of 413 ac/ft remaining. 
 

 
 

• Groundwater  
Approximately 78,724,000 gallons or seventy-seven percent (77%) of the drinking water produced was from the 
District’s groundwater sources during the month of August. Groundwater production Wells 1, 6, 10, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 
and 25 are operating as expected and available for service. The increased utilization of groundwater has caused some 
additional well drawdown as anticipated. All wells continue to be monitored daily and the currently available wells 
are adequate to meet current demand.  



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT           Agenda Item: B-1          

Operations Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 3 of 7                                                                                                                   Clay Murray – Operations Superintendent MCWD 
 

 

 

 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT           Agenda Item: B-1          

Operations Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 4 of 7                                                                                                                   Clay Murray – Operations Superintendent MCWD 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT           Agenda Item: B-1          

Operations Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 5 of 7                                                                                                                   Clay Murray – Operations Superintendent MCWD 
 

• Water Audit Information 
The water audit for this billing period shows a total of eleven percent (11%) or 11.169 million gallons of non-revenue 
water. The increase in non-revenue water will be investigated by staff to identify if the increase is from leakage that 
can be addressed. 

 
 

 
Wastewater – Treatment & Flow  
 

• Wastewater Treatment 
Treated wastewater discharged from the facility met all water quality standards for the month as established by the 
State Water Quality Control Board. Staff is currently working with the Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 
on our revised waste discharge requirements and potential infrastructure upgrades. This process will be ongoing over 
the coming months. 
 

• Wastewater Flows 
The total volume of wastewater treated during the month of August was 45,732,000 gallons. This results in an average 
volume of 1.48 million gallons per day of wastewater flow. The influent flow meter has been affected by downstream 
equipment and seems to be reporting overstated values. Staff has provisioned a remedy for this problem and has 
installed the new equipment. The equipment is currently being tested and improvements are needed to ensure the 
system stays free of debris. The wastewater effluent values are now being used for this report until the influent meter 
solution is resolved. 
 

• Recycled Water 
Sierra Star Golf Course purchased 10,541,000 gallons of recycled wastewater. Snowcreek Golf Course purchased 
11,502,000 gallons of recycled water. Recycled water production and sales are on track to be the highest on record. 
 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT           Agenda Item: B-1          

Operations Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 6 of 7                                                                                                                   Clay Murray – Operations Superintendent MCWD 
 

 
 

• Industrial Users 
Currently the Wastewater and Engineering staff are working on identifying potential industrial users and ensuring 
compliance with our requirements. Mammoth Brewing Company has not crossed the threshold and qualified as an 
industrial user since August 2018. 
 

• Projects 
The installation of the dewatering screw press is the next project slated for the WWTP and is scheduled for this fall. 
Equipment for this project is scheduled to be delivered in September. 

 

Laboratory Management 
 

• Regulatory Compliance 
Laboratory personnel are currently updating processes and record keeping practices to meet the forthcoming 
regulation changes from state to nationally recognized standards. Part of this effort includes the implementation of 
the Laboratory Information Management System which is currently in the set up and testing phase. 
 
The State Water Resources Control Board voted to adopt the new laboratory regulations on May 5th and will take 
effect October 1st, 2020. The implementation will occur over the course of several years and the MCWD lab is already 
prepared to meet most of the requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT           Agenda Item: B-1          

Operations Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 7 of 7                                                                                                                   Clay Murray – Operations Superintendent MCWD 
 

Photovoltaic Power Plant Operations & Total District Electrical Usage  
 

• Solar plant production 
The total kilowatt hours of energy produced for the month of August was 187,040 kWh. The irradiance and plant 
production for August was 17% less than August 2019.  
 

 
 

• Total electrical energy use 
Monthly energy usage chart for the past 13 years through July 2020. The monthly total includes all District facilities 
(34 electric meters) for all water, wastewater, and administrative uses.  

 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-2 

Maintenance Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 1 of 3 Jerry Baker– Maintenance Superintendent MCWD 
 

Report Summary 

The Maintenance Department’s main focus for the month of August was rebuilding clarifiers at the WWTP, Tank 
T- 6 rehabilitation project, preventive maintenance, and working on meeting annual maintenance goals. 

Wastewater Treatment Plant and Recycled Water Maintenance  

 Performed routine maintenance including daily and weekly preventive maintenance inspections 

 Rebuilt and installed a press feed pump; old unit will be rebuilt and stored for future use. 

 Rebuilt secondary clarifier #2, returned to operation, ordered parts for secondary clarifier #1   

 Cleaned digester #2 and placed back in service 

 Removed digester #1 from service and drained  

 Replaced hose and oil in Water Activated Sludge (WAS) pump #2 

 Removed weeds and brush from around plant and dump station 

 Work continued on new influent flow meter installation and testing 

Solar Power Plant Maintenance 

 Performed general visual inspections  

Surface Water Treatment Plant and Related Facilities Maintenance 

 Performed preventive maintenance inspections 

Groundwater Treatment Plant and Related Facilities Maintenance   

 Performed daily and weekly preventive maintenance inspections 

 Assisted Well 32 drillers as needed  

 Replaced PLC at Well 17; new unit has upgraded power connections 

 Repaired failed Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) unit in PLC at GWTP #1 

 Investigated high pressure alarm at GWTP #2; no actual pressure issue was detected 

 Worked with Operations Department to clean out chemical containment areas at GWTP #1 

Water Distribution System Operations & Maintenance   

 Performed weekly inspections at the pressure reducing stations and monthly tank inspections 

 Valve exercising: 321 valves exercised, 90% of annual goal. The District has 1,919 valves which are on a 
five year exercising rotation with 30 critical valves being exercised annually.  

 Air relief valve inspections: 20 valves inspected, 95% of annual goal. The District has 109 air relief valves 
which are inspected on a five year rotating basis.     

 Fire hydrant inspections: 225 hydrants inspected, 81% of annual goal. There are 559 fire hydrants in the 
system, which are inspected on a two year rotating basis.  

 Quarterly water mainline flushing: 44 areas within the Water Distribution System where crews have 
identified dead end lines, 75% of annual goal 

 Coordinated with ML Fire Department on hydrant flushing program for 2020 

 Assisted with monitoring and hydrant flushing for air entrained in water on upper Old Mammoth Rd 
caused by Tank T-6 rehab project until the problem was alleviated by distribution system changes 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-2 

Maintenance Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 2 of 3 Jerry Baker– Maintenance Superintendent MCWD 
 

 Ran temporary water supply for Tank T-6 rehab project for contractor 

 Repaired  two leaking water service laterals, two fire hydrants, and a one valve lid 

 Worked with IT Department on GIS updates 

 Responded to a water quality complaint, determined the cause to be a MCWD galvanized lateral. The 
customer is going to replace their water lateral in the near future and we will upgrade our side at that 
time.  

 Performed 59 metering system repairs  

 Adjusted control valves as needed for area specific water usage changes and pumped out vaults 

 Responded to 13 customer service calls 

 Backflow annual test mailings: 1st notices for September included 153 sites and 280 hazards, 2nd notices 
for August included 163 sites and 328 hazards, 3rd notices for August included 60 sites and 128 hazards; 
currently tracking 1,771 backflow assemblies at 909 sites 

 Mapped meters 

 Cleaned and repaired meter pits 

 Performed annual inspections on control valves for three tanks  and two pressure reducing stations 

 Moved meters at three locations for better accessibility and to prevent freezing 

Wastewater Collection System Operations & Maintenance  

 Performed weekly inspections of the lift stations and force mains 

 Sewer five year rotating scheduled cleanings and inspections: 64,084 of pipe cleaned, 89% of annual goal. 
There are 361,527’ of sewer lines on this schedule. 

 Sewer quarterly and bi-annual rotating scheduled cleanings and inspections: 30,801’ of pipe cleaned, 81% 
of annual goal. There are 38,030’ of sewer lines on this schedule. This schedule includes identified sewer 
lines that are in need of enhanced maintenance. Sewer lines on this schedule get cleaned two to four 
times a year. Some lines also have minimizer pumps that inject a grease emulsifier several times a day to 
help keep grease in suspension. These are monitored on an as-needed basis.  

 Completed cleaning and TV inspection of 18”-24” Old Mammoth Rd trunk line on bike path  

 Replaced frame, cover, and concrete around four manholes 

 Completed poly patch repairs around several manhole lids 

 Responded to an emergency where a manhole was hit by a loader during a paving job 

 Responded twice to a sewer lateral blockage on private property; cleared the blockage, advised property 
manager on proper sewer usage, and invoiced for the work completed 

 Investigated a sewer complaint that was determined to be the homeowner’s responsibility 

 Responded to alarms and removed clogs from pumps at West Mary and Twin Falls  lift stations 
 

Special Projects/Programs 

Tank T-6 Rehabilitation 
The scope of work includes complete rehab of both the interior and exterior of the tank. 
Status: The contractors finished the interior lid, rafters, girders and walls of the tank. The project is on 
schedule and the tank should be back online mid-September. 

 
 
 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-2 

Maintenance Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 3 of 3 Jerry Baker– Maintenance Superintendent MCWD 
 

Sludge Dewatering and Conveyance  
In anticipation of the Benton Landfill site closure, the WWTP is upgrading the dewatering and conveyance 
system; the sludge will then be hauled to the landfill in Fallon NV. 
Status: Equipment has been ordered and is awaiting delivery; RFQ for hauling sludge has been awarded; 
Hauling services should begin December 2020.  

Sewer Rehabilitation FY21 
MCWD continues to make improvements to the sewer system. This year approximately 6,000’ of sewer main 
will be lined and 20 manholes repaired.  
Status: Work is scheduled 9/14/20 – 10/15/20      

Summer Construction: In-house construction projects for FY21: 

Project  Scope  Status 

Meter Replacements - 
Snowflower Condos 

Replace 22 1.5” meters with new 
meter pits 

Project was completed 6/19. Hot mix 
paving scheduled for fall. 

Water Service Lateral 
Replacements - The Trails 

Replace 48 double laterals, 4 single 
laterals, and 5 air relief valves 
affecting 102 services  

Work is 67% complete. Progress has 
been impacted by common utility 
trenches on all properties and abundant 
landscaping. Scheduled completion by 
10/9/20 

Water System 
Improvement - 
Snowcreek Phase V 

Install a 10” gate valve on the 
existing main line for isolation 
purposes  

Scheduled  10/12/20 – 10/14/20 

Water Service Lateral 
Replacements - 
Snowcreek Crest 

Replace 27 double laterals, 2 single 
laterals, and 1 air relief valve 
affecting 58 services  

Scheduled -TBD 

 
Fats, Oil and Grease (FOG) Program: Disruption of business due to COVID-19 has resulted in the permanent 
closures of five FSEs and one FSE relocated to a food truck. 

 Total 
Active 
FSEs 

Exempted 
FSEs 

Goslyn 
Traps 

Conventional 
Grease 
Traps 

Interceptors Garbage 
Disposals 

Violations 

2020 
Totals 

78 21 20 22 11 2 0 

2019 
Totals 

83 21 23 26 10 2 4 

Departmental / General 

 Departments held weekly safety meetings 

 Performed weekly vehicle maintenance and general maintenance on District buildings and grounds 

 Assisted the Operations Department with stand-by duties and sludge runs 

 Responded to 295 USA dig alerts this year, locating MCWD water and sewer lines 
 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-3 

Finance Department Report  9/17/2020 

September, 2020 
 

 

Page 1 of 6 Jeff Beatty - Finance Manager MCWD 

 

Financial Department Update 
 
Water use revenue is $185,776 (21.2 %) above budget which provides a partial offset to the reduced 
revenue ($296,504 below budget) from the temporary rate reduction provided in response to the 
COVID-19 economic impact.  The mid-year property tax adjustment of $149,366 was received on 
September 4th and will bring total property tax revenue very close to budget.  Total revenue (excluding 
gain in market value of the investment portfolio) is $138,859 (2.9 %) below budget. 
 
The percentage of customers with late payments improved significantly between July and August with 
4.6 % of the amount due at least 30 days late, down from 11.5%.  The District continues to waive late 
fees and defer water shut-off for non-payment. 
 
The contract with Tyler Technology for the implementation of a new enterprise software system is 
signed and planning has begun for the incremental transition. 
 
Work on the wastewater rate study is actively moving forward, with District staff engaged in dialog with 
Raftelis and exchanging financial and operational data. 
 
Significant expenditures for the month include: 

 $256,105 to Yellow Jacket Drilling for work on Well 32 

 $119,109 to Simpson Sandblasting for work on the Tank 6 rehab project 

 $68,842 to Backflow Solutions for the completion of our quinquennial survey 

 $53,650  to Process Water Technologies as partial payment for the sludge dewatering press 
 
 

Graphs and Tables 

 
Details on capital expenditures are listed in Table A, operation expenses in Table B, fund balances in 
Table C, utility bill aging in Table D, and cash balance projection in Table E, followed by a summary of the 
District’s investment portfolio including the monthly report of transactions. 
 
Summary graphs of revenue and expenses are presented below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-3 

Finance Department Report  9/17/2020 

September, 2020 
 

 

Page 2 of 6 Jeff Beatty - Finance Manager MCWD 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-3 

Finance Department Report  9/17/2020 

September, 2020 
 

 

Page 3 of 6 Jeff Beatty - Finance Manager MCWD 

 

Financial Reports 

 
Table A Capital Project Management 

 

BRE = Business Risk Exposure 

Capital Funds Project Summary

Fiscal Year: 2021

Spending through August 2020

FUND Proj# PROJECT DESCRIPTION BRE FY 2021 Budget FY 2021 YTD 

Expenditure

Prior Project 

Expenditure

Total Project 

Expenditure

23 6233 WWTP Sludge De-Watering and Conveyance 24 652,900              98,972           98,972            

23 6013 Lift Station Radio Replacements 23 62,200                59,537           -                   59,537            

22 5272 Tank 6 Rehab 22 655,500              165,728         165,728          

21 6228 WWTP Back-up Power and battery UPS 21 54,600                13,969           -                   13,969            

23 6235 WWTP Filter Bypass Pump 21 70,300                -                   

23 6234 WWTP Headworks/Filtration PLC Upgrade 21 173,500              166,474         -                   166,474          

23 6219 Laurel Pond Monitoring Wells 21 401,700              37,098           20,445            57,543            

22 5059 Well 32 21 1,631,500          782,000         228,536          1,010,536      

23 6035 Rehab Secondary Clarifier #2 20 67,700                1,397              -                   1,397               

23 6043 Sewer Line Rehab FY 2021 18 401,600              1,284              1,284               

22 5239 Distribution System Improvements FY 2021 17 689,100              414,077         414,077          

22 5025 College Vault PRV 13 8,900                  9,121              9,121               

22 5067 Timber Ridge Pump Station Rehab 13 12,900                11,378           -                   11,378            

23 6011 Twin Falls Lift Station Rehab 13 36,800                37,490           -                   37,490            

23 6012 West Mary Lift Station Rehab 13 36,800                37,829           37,829            

23 6030 Wastewater Cost of Service Study 8 25,000                5,549              14,394            19,943            

22 5032 Water Cost of Service Study 8 50,000                -                  -                   

21 8001 Upgrade ERP Software 4 258,400              2,093              2,093               

23 6158 WWTP Influent Flow Meters 12,195           12,195            

23 6034 Primary Clarifier #2 Rehab 20 891                 30,455            31,346            

21/31 5013 Rehab/Replace Admin Bldg 25,000                -                  16,473            16,473            

22 5004 LMTP Improvements 30,000                -                  6,163               6,163               

22 5525 Update Groundwater Model 135,100              -                  -                   

22

Capital Equipment

23 Sludge hauling trailers 180,300              

22 Dump truck replacement (CARB compliance) 150,000              

23 Sewer camera and carrier 65,000                61,481           

22/23 Water truck replacement (CARB compliance) 60,000                55,839           

22 Van-pool van 45,000                

22/23 Vehicle replacement (Engineering) 36,500                

23 Pool vehicle 35,000                29,004           

22 Concrete saw 35,000                34,480           

21 Fuel dispenser replacements 20,000                

23 Primary 4 Rehab 10,162           

Total Capital Projects and Equipment 5,979,800          2,048,047     



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-3 

Finance Department Report  9/17/2020 

September, 2020 
 

 

Page 4 of 6 Jeff Beatty - Finance Manager MCWD 

 

Table B Revenue and Expenses  

 

Account YTD Actual YTD Budget Better/Worse % Diff

Billing - Water Usage 1,060,839    875,063       185,776            21.2%

Water Base Rates 659,197       770,382       (111,185)          -14.4%

Wastewater Base Rates 1,028,993    1,214,311    (185,319)          -15.3%

Engineering Revenue 38,037          24,813          13,224              53.3%

Miscellaneous Revenue 90,929          84,339          6,590                7.8%

Permits - Connection Fees 197,757       128,899       68,858              53.4%

Taxes and Assessments 1,385,137    1,541,982    (156,844)          -10.2%

Interest Income 175,070       135,000       40,070              29.7%

Subtotal Revenue 4,635,960    4,774,789    (138,829)          -2.9%

Investment Gain (Loss) 106,798       -                -                     

Total Revenue 4,742,758    4,774,789    (32,031)            -0.7%

Salaries & Wages 1,384,510    1,434,334    49,824              3.5%

Salaries & Wages - Board Members 8,231            9,615            1,385                14.4%

Salaries & Wages - Capital 60,803          96,722          35,919              37.1%

Employee Benefits - Group Insu 400,739       413,900       13,162              3.2%

Employee Benefits - Pension 304,535       327,056       22,521              6.9%

Employee Benefits - Workers Co 20,041          23,887          3,845                16.1%

Employer  Paid Taxes 23,968          22,901          (1,068)               -4.7%

Total Personnel Expense 2,202,827    2,328,415    125,588            5.4%

Employee Engagement 1,045            18,958          17,914              94.5%

Ee Ben. PPE Unif Other 9,834            8,514            (1,319)               -15.5%

Outside Services/Contractual 109,215       111,494       2,279                2.0%

Property Tax Admin. Fee 52,510          55,125          2,615                4.7%

Sludge Disposal 57,612          100,000       42,388              42.4%

Software Licenses and Agrmnts 78,297          72,013          (6,284)               -8.7%

IT Services 11,710          16,667          4,957                29.7%

Banking Fees 14,723          15,833          1,111                7.0%

Professional Services 72,987          149,438       76,450              51.2%

Outside Lab Services 31,181          23,021          (8,160)               -35.4%

Employee Housing Expenses 17,329          30,325          12,996              42.9%

Operating Tools 24,725          19,958          (4,767)               -23.9%

Gasoline 15,828          15,542          (286)                  -1.8%

Diesel Fuel 10,109          6,621            (3,488)               -52.7%

Insurance 60,997          58,333          (2,664)               -4.6%

Legal Services 20,073          51,250          31,177              60.8%

M & R - Line Repair/Equipment 40,056          88,233          48,177              54.6%

M & R - Buildings 27,229          56,250          29,021              51.6%

M & R - Vehicles 34,315          31,250          (3,065)               -9.8%

Memberships/Certifications 7,602            19,485          11,883              61.0%

Permit Materials 10,693          6,250            (4,443)               -71.1%

Operating Chemicals 55,141          84,802          29,661              35.0%

Operating Supplies 40,992          51,750          10,758              20.8%

Computer Systems/Equipment 24,135          31,250          7,115                22.8%

Postage/Freight 3,624            3,925            301                    7.7%

Advertising Publications & PR 10,729          9,896            (833)                  -8.4%

Books & Subscriptions 64                  700                636                    90.9%

Safety 4,797            20,421          15,624              76.5%

Permits & Licensing 15,457          16,771          1,314                7.8%

Settlement Costs 50,000          62,360          12,360              19.8%

Telephone 14,581          18,133          3,552                19.6%

Training & Meetings 2,700            35,210          32,510              92.3%

Travel Expenses (832)              27,292          28,123              103.0%

Bank Reconciliation over/short (4)                   N/A

Utilities-Electric 134,582       174,333       39,751              22.8%

Utilities-Propane 2,805            14,025          11,220              80.0%

Water Conservation 29,542          53,125          23,583              44.4%

Total Operating Expense 1,096,382    1,558,554    462,167            29.7%



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-3 

Finance Department Report  9/17/2020 

September, 2020 
 

 

Page 5 of 6 Jeff Beatty - Finance Manager MCWD 

 

Table C Fund Balance 

 

 

Available fund balance equals cash – current liabilities.    

Table D Trended Utility Bill Aging Report  

 

 
 
 

The total amount past due is $27,906 as of August 31, 2020. 

10 20 30 21 22 23

Admin Water Wastewater Admin Water Wastewater

Cash Total 431,214               1,254,292           1,222,007           993,435               9,731,205           6,656,552           

Current Assets 386,565               540,142               174,005               -                        23,145                 10,366                 

Non-current Assets -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Capital Assets 108                       4,906                   -                        1,972,599           34,065,653         15,325,176         

Total Assets 817,887               1,799,340           1,396,011           2,966,033           43,820,003         21,992,093         

Current Liabilities (94,990)               21,973                 13,426                 -                        (62,271)               3,427                   

Non-current Liabilities (327,919)             (195,493)             (170,293)             -                        -                        -                        

Assets - Liabilities 394,978               1,625,820           1,239,144           2,966,033           43,757,733         21,995,521         

Target Fund Balance 190,000               1,160,000           1,260,000           1,000,000           5,964,000           3,348,000           

Available Fund Balance 336,224               1,276,265           1,235,433           993,435               9,668,934           6,659,979           

Operating Funds Capital R&R Funds

31 32 33 96 98

Admin Water Wastewater Enterprise LADWP Total

Cash Total 1,007,543           1,179,105           374,188               656,579               368,344               23,959,549         

Current Assets -                        (35)                        -                        8,210                   -                        1,142,400           

Non-current Assets -                        -                        -                        2,466,076           -                        2,466,076           

Capital Assets 5,436                   9,898,976           4,262,146           1,308,791           -                        66,843,791         

Total Assets 1,012,980           11,078,047         4,636,334           4,439,656           368,344               94,411,816         

Current Liabilities -                        (415)                     (179)                     (9,610)                  -                        (128,638)             

Non-current Liabilities -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        (693,704)             

Assets - Liabilities 1,012,980           11,077,632         4,636,155           4,430,046           368,344               93,589,474         

Target Fund Balance 1,000,000           1,045,000           288,000               500,000               375,000               16,215,101         

Available Fund Balance 1,007,543           1,178,690           374,009               646,969               368,344               23,830,912         

Capital Expansion Funds Other Funds



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-3 

Finance Department Report  9/17/2020 

September, 2020 
 

 

Page 6 of 6 Jeff Beatty - Finance Manager MCWD 

 

 
Table E Cash Balance Projection 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(Estimated)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Chk/Sav 945,172        1,015,032    627,478       455,581              381,193          400,826       456,444       369,787       543,082       556,437       511,421       558,472       

LAIF 4,595,710    6,595,710    6,595,710    5,895,710          5,895,710      4,695,710    3,495,710    2,695,710    1,995,710    6,295,710    6,095,710    5,595,710    

CalTrust S 1,724,743    1,730,173    1,733,415    1,734,741          1,735,854      1,738,023    1,740,196    1,742,371    1,744,549    1,746,730    1,748,913    1,751,099    

Investment 16,268,930  16,365,514 16,370,708 16,378,097        16,332,517    16,352,932 16,373,373 16,393,840 16,414,332 16,434,850 16,455,394 16,475,963 

Total 23,534,554  25,706,429 25,327,311 24,464,129        24,345,273    23,187,492 22,065,723 21,201,708 20,697,674 25,033,727 24,811,438 24,381,245 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cash Balance Projection

Investment CalTrust M CalTrust S LAIF Chk/Sav



Transaction Ledger
As of August 31, 2020

Mammoth Community Water District

Account #10652

Transaction  
Type

Settlement 
Date CUSIP Quantity Security Description Price Acq/Disp

Yield Amount Interest
Pur/Sold Total Amount Gain/Loss

ACQUISITIONS

Purchase 08/03/2020 31846V203 0.94 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 0.94 0.00 0.94 0.00

Purchase 08/07/2020 31846V203 1,300.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,300.00 0.00 1,300.00 0.00

Purchase 08/09/2020 31846V203 850.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 850.00 0.00 850.00 0.00

Purchase 08/11/2020 31846V203 1,815.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,815.00 0.00 1,815.00 0.00

Purchase 08/12/2020 31846V203 707.17 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 707.17 0.00 707.17 0.00

Purchase 08/12/2020 31846V203 481.90 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 481.90 0.00 481.90 0.00

Purchase 08/12/2020 92290BAA9 180,000.00 Verizon Owner Trust 2020-B A
0.47% Due 2/20/2025

99.979 0.48% 179,962.20 0.00 179,962.20 0.00

Purchase 08/15/2020 31846V203 2,697.50 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 2,697.50 0.00 2,697.50 0.00

Purchase 08/15/2020 31846V203 101,145.83 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 101,145.83 0.00 101,145.83 0.00

Purchase 08/16/2020 31846V203 1,100.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,100.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 3,281.25 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 3,281.25 0.00 3,281.25 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 170.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 170.00 0.00 170.00 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 485.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 485.00 0.00 485.00 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 615.15 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 615.15 0.00 615.15 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 201.04 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 201.04 0.00 201.04 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 893.74 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 893.74 0.00 893.74 0.00

Execution Time: 9/1/2020 7:25:49 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 11



Transaction Ledger
As of August 31, 2020

Mammoth Community Water District

Account #10652

Transaction  
Type

Settlement 
Date CUSIP Quantity Security Description Price Acq/Disp

Yield Amount Interest
Pur/Sold Total Amount Gain/Loss

ACQUISITIONS

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 408.58 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 408.58 0.00 408.58 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 352.73 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 352.73 0.00 352.73 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 1,430.48 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,430.48 0.00 1,430.48 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 991.18 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 991.18 0.00 991.18 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 1,322.93 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,322.93 0.00 1,322.93 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 6,345.73 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 6,345.73 0.00 6,345.73 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 10,101.03 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 10,101.03 0.00 10,101.03 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 14,214.45 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 14,214.45 0.00 14,214.45 0.00

Purchase 08/17/2020 31846V203 100,000.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00

Purchase 08/18/2020 31846V203 1,650.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,650.00 0.00 1,650.00 0.00

Purchase 08/20/2020 31846V203 129.33 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 129.33 0.00 129.33 0.00

Purchase 08/21/2020 46647PAH9 220,000.00 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 2X 
3/1/2024
3.22% Due 3/1/2025

108.009 1.01% 237,619.80 3,345.22 240,965.02 0.00

Purchase 08/23/2020 31846V203 1,360.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,360.00 0.00 1,360.00 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 687.50 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 687.50 0.00 687.50 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 1,444.54 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,444.54 0.00 1,444.54 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 1,560.92 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,560.92 0.00 1,560.92 0.00

Execution Time: 9/1/2020 7:25:49 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 12



Transaction Ledger
As of August 31, 2020

Mammoth Community Water District

Account #10652

Transaction  
Type

Settlement 
Date CUSIP Quantity Security Description Price Acq/Disp

Yield Amount Interest
Pur/Sold Total Amount Gain/Loss

ACQUISITIONS

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 2,219.59 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 2,219.59 0.00 2,219.59 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 1,425.79 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,425.79 0.00 1,425.79 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 2,376.24 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 2,376.24 0.00 2,376.24 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 1,372.83 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,372.83 0.00 1,372.83 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 1,799.01 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,799.01 0.00 1,799.01 0.00

Purchase 08/25/2020 31846V203 2,095.21 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 2,095.21 0.00 2,095.21 0.00

Purchase 08/31/2020 31846V203 1,625.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 1,625.00 0.00 1,625.00 0.00

Subtotal 670,657.59 688,239.59 3,345.22 691,584.81 0.00

TOTAL ACQUISITIONS 670,657.59 688,239.59 3,345.22 691,584.81 0.00

DISPOSITIONS

Sale 08/12/2020 31846V203 179,962.20 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 179,962.20 0.00 179,962.20 0.00

Sale 08/21/2020 31846V203 240,965.02 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 0.01% 240,965.02 0.00 240,965.02 0.00

Subtotal 420,927.22 420,927.22 0.00 420,927.22 0.00

Call 08/15/2020 38141GVP6 100,000.00 Goldman Sachs Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 08/15/20
2.75% Due 9/15/2020

100.000 2.73% 100,000.00 1,145.83 101,145.83 -54.96

Execution Time: 9/1/2020 7:25:49 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 13



Transaction Ledger
As of August 31, 2020

Mammoth Community Water District

Account #10652

Transaction  
Type

Settlement 
Date CUSIP Quantity Security Description Price Acq/Disp

Yield Amount Interest
Pur/Sold Total Amount Gain/Loss

DISPOSITIONS

Call 08/17/2020 46623EKG3 100,000.00 JP Morgan Chase Callable Note 1X 
8/15/2020
2.295% Due 8/15/2021

100.000 2.30% 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 165.91

Subtotal 200,000.00 200,000.00 1,145.83 201,145.83 110.95

Paydown 08/12/2020 17318UAD6 0.00 Citigroup Commercial Mtg Trust 2012-
GC8 A4
3.024% Due 9/10/2045

100.000 0.00 481.90 481.90 0.00

Paydown 08/12/2020 36198FAE2 0.00 GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2013-
GC14 A5
4.243% Due 8/10/2046

100.000 0.00 707.17 707.17 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 02582JHJ2 0.00 American Express Credit Trust 2017-6 A
2.04% Due 5/15/2023

100.000 0.00 170.00 170.00 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 3128MEMN8 817.34 FHLMC FG G15565
3% Due 10/1/2030

100.000 817.34 76.40 893.74 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 3128PTJY2 403.94 FHLMC FG J13879
3.5% Due 12/1/2020

100.000 403.94 4.64 408.58 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 3128PTM85 348.03 FHLMC FG J13983
3.5% Due 1/1/2021

100.000 348.03 4.70 352.73 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 31307PEF2 1,366.82 FHLMC FG J32834
2.5% Due 9/1/2030

100.000 1,366.82 63.66 1,430.48 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 31307PNB1 882.77 FHLMC FG J33086
3% Due 11/1/2030

100.000 882.77 108.41 991.18 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 3132KFBZ4 1,230.72 FHLMC FG V60956
2.5% Due 9/1/2030

100.000 1,230.72 92.21 1,322.93 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 43811BAC8 6,313.35 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2017-2 
A3
1.68% Due 8/16/2021

100.000 6,313.35 32.38 6,345.73 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 47789JAD8 0.00 John Deere Owner Trust 2019-A A3
2.91% Due 7/17/2023

100.000 0.00 485.00 485.00 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 61762MBW0 0.00 Morgan Stanley BAML Trust 2013-C10 
A4Due 7/15/2046

100.000 0.00 615.15 615.15 0.00

Execution Time: 9/1/2020 7:25:49 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 14



Transaction Ledger
As of August 31, 2020

Mammoth Community Water District

Account #10652

Transaction  
Type

Settlement 
Date CUSIP Quantity Security Description Price Acq/Disp

Yield Amount Interest
Pur/Sold Total Amount Gain/Loss

DISPOSITIONS

Paydown 08/17/2020 65478WAE5 10,062.62 Nissan Auto Receivables Trust 2016-C 
A4
1.38% Due 1/17/2023

100.000 10,062.62 38.41 10,101.03 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 65479JAD5 0.00 Nissan Auto Receivables Owner 2019-C 
A3
1.93% Due 7/15/2024

100.000 0.00 201.04 201.04 0.00

Paydown 08/17/2020 89238KAD4 14,064.59 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2017-D 
A3
1.93% Due 1/18/2022

100.000 14,064.59 149.86 14,214.45 0.00

Paydown 08/20/2020 92348AAA3 0.00 Verizon Owner Trust 2019-C A1A
1.94% Due 4/22/2024

100.000 0.00 129.33 129.33 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3137B3NX2 0.00 FHLMC K031 A2Due 4/25/2023 100.000 0.00 687.50 687.50 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3137BFDQ1 520.92 FHLMC K717 A2
2.991% Due 9/25/2021

100.000 520.92 923.62 1,444.54 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3138ETA55 1,474.56 FNMA FN AL8127
2% Due 1/1/2031

100.000 1,474.56 86.36 1,560.92 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3138WE3R8 2,122.57 FNMA FN AS5307
3% Due 7/1/2030

100.000 2,122.57 97.02 2,219.59 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3138WE5U9 1,329.60 FNMA FN AS5358
3% Due 7/1/2030

100.000 1,329.60 96.19 1,425.79 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3138YDAS8 2,309.70 FNMA FN AY0016
2.5% Due 1/1/2030

100.000 2,309.70 66.54 2,376.24 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3138YR6T0 1,271.33 FNMA FN AZ0881
2.5% Due 7/1/2030

100.000 1,271.33 101.50 1,372.83 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 3138YTMT8 1,708.17 FNMA FN AZ2169
2.5% Due 7/1/2030

100.000 1,708.17 90.84 1,799.01 0.00

Paydown 08/25/2020 31418BLL8 1,950.11 FNMA FN MA2130
3.5% Due 12/1/2029

100.000 1,950.11 145.10 2,095.21 0.00

Subtotal 48,177.14 48,177.14 5,654.93 53,832.07 0.00

Security 
Withdrawal

08/03/2020 31846V203 39,890.28 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 39,890.28 0.00 39,890.28 0.00

Execution Time: 9/1/2020 7:25:49 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 15



Transaction Ledger
As of August 31, 2020

Mammoth Community Water District

Account #10652

Transaction  
Type

Settlement 
Date CUSIP Quantity Security Description Price Acq/Disp

Yield Amount Interest
Pur/Sold Total Amount Gain/Loss

DISPOSITIONS

Security 
Withdrawal

08/05/2020 31846V203 1,500.00 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00

Security 
Withdrawal

08/25/2020 31846V203 136.48 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

1.000 136.48 0.00 136.48 0.00

Subtotal 41,526.76 41,526.76 0.00 41,526.76 0.00

TOTAL DISPOSITIONS 710,631.12 710,631.12 6,800.76 717,431.88 110.95

OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Interest 08/07/2020 06406RAA5 100,000.00 Bank of NY Mellon Corp Callable Note 
Cont 1/7/2022
2.6% Due 2/7/2022

0.000 1,300.00 0.00 1,300.00 0.00

Interest 08/09/2020 14912L6U0 100,000.00 Caterpillar Finance Serv Corp Note
1.7% Due 8/9/2021

0.000 850.00 0.00 850.00 0.00

Interest 08/11/2020 69371RN44 220,000.00 Paccar Financial Corp Note
1.65% Due 8/11/2021

0.000 1,815.00 0.00 1,815.00 0.00

Interest 08/15/2020 341099CP2 100,000.00 Florida Power Corp Callable Note Cont 
5/15/2021
3.1% Due 8/15/2021

0.000 1,550.00 0.00 1,550.00 0.00

Interest 08/15/2020 46623EKG3 100,000.00 JP Morgan Chase Callable Note 1X 
8/15/2020
2.295% Due 8/15/2021

0.000 1,147.50 0.00 1,147.50 0.00

Interest 08/16/2020 06406FAD5 100,000.00 Bank of NY Mellon Corp Callable Note 
Cont 6/16/2023
2.2% Due 8/16/2023

0.000 1,100.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.00

Interest 08/17/2020 69353RFB9 250,000.00 PNC Bank Callable Note Cont 1/18/2022

2.625% Due 2/17/2022

0.000 3,281.25 0.00 3,281.25 0.00

Interest 08/18/2020 3130A7CV5 240,000.00 FHLB Note
1.375% Due 2/18/2021

0.000 1,650.00 0.00 1,650.00 0.00

Interest 08/23/2020 38141GWT7 85,000.00 Goldman Sachs Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 1/23/2023
3.2% Due 2/23/2023

0.000 1,360.00 0.00 1,360.00 0.00

Execution Time: 9/1/2020 7:25:49 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 16



Transaction Ledger
As of August 31, 2020

Mammoth Community Water District

Account #10652

Transaction  
Type

Settlement 
Date CUSIP Quantity Security Description Price Acq/Disp

Yield Amount Interest
Pur/Sold Total Amount Gain/Loss

OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Interest 08/31/2020 9128282S8 200,000.00 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 8/31/2022

0.000 1,625.00 0.00 1,625.00 0.00

Subtotal 1,495,000.00 15,678.75 0.00 15,678.75 0.00

Dividend 08/03/2020 31846V203 223,870.31 First American Govt Obligation Fund 
Class Y

0.000 0.94 0.00 0.94 0.00

Subtotal 223,870.31 0.94 0.00 0.94 0.00

TOTAL OTHER TRANSACTIONS 1,718,870.31 15,679.69 0.00 15,679.69 0.00

Execution Time: 9/1/2020 7:25:49 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 17



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-4 

Engineering Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 1 of 2 Garrett Higerd– District Engineer MCWD 

Please see the Engineering Department Report map attached for reference. 
 
District Projects  
 

 Well 32 Production Well Development – This project has transitioned from being an exploratory borehole 
to development of a production well based on preliminary results indicating that we could reasonably 
expect to see the well produce 1,500 gpm, with good water quality results.  The well drillers are now in the 
process of reaming out the bore hole to 19” down to 900 feet below ground surface.  The drillers have 
encountered some mechanical issues (broken-down compressors, etc.) which has slowed the progress 
somewhat.  The delays are not expected to cause additional costs or prevent the drilling from being 
completed this construction season.  Dave Carlson has done a good job managing the project and 
communicating with neighboring constituents.  The next stage is to complete civil, mechanical, and 
electrical plans for the well infrastructure that will be at the surface.  Completion of these plans is expected 
by the end of the year and in time to construct the work and bring the well on line in the first half of the 
2021 construction season.   

 Center Street Monitoring Well – Several potential well sites have been eliminated.  However, two new 
potential sites have been identified on property owned by the Town of Mammoth Lakes near “The Parcel”.  
Conversations are moving forward with the Town and other partners (the USGS and our consultants) to 
fully vet the sites, prepare plans, prepare easement documents, obtain permits, and move forward with 
drilling the well.  This project is time sensitive because it is important to begin collecting groundwater data 
as soon as possible to collect baseline data prior to Ormat’s CDIV geothermal expansion project production 
wells coming online.  Unfortunately, with their current schedule, the USGS well drillers are probably not 
going to be available to drill the well this fall.   

 Laurel Pond Monitoring Well replacements – The engineering and geological plans and specifications are 
complete and are preparing a Request for Quotes with a short turn-around time to ensure we get 
competitive pricing, and comply with the District procurement policy.  The project requires a permit from 
the Inyo National Forest and the one outstanding item is an archeological review that is expected to be 
complete any time.  Once permission from USFS is granted, and a contractor is under contract, a notice to 
proceed will be issued with an anticipated completion date by the end of 2020. 

 Monitoring Well BLM2 – The BLM continues to work on securing two well sites near Old Shady Rest 
Campground for the addition of a dual nested well pair and a deep well. Well development activities are 
pending issuance of Special Use permits from the USFS for construction of the monitoring wells.  This is a 
high priority for the USGS well drilling team and is expected to be completed by the end of the year. 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Emergency Power – The scope of this project is to have the existing 
emergency generator power additional treatment processing loads and to increase capacity and 
functionality during power outages. The preparation work has been completed and the remaining work will 
be scheduled when the plant can be depowered for an estimated six hour period; likely this coming winter.   

 Biosolids Dewatering and Hauling – New dewatering equipment has been ordered and installation by 
District staff is planned for this fall.  Chuck Villar Construction, Inc. submitted the lowest quote for hauling 
the sludge to Fallon, Nevada.  Solids hauling trailers have been ordered and are expected to be delivered 
mid-November. The hope is to be hauling sludge to Nevada by the end of the year.  



Page 2 of 2 Garrett Higerd– District Engineer MCWD 

 
Department Activities  

 
 Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) – Work continues with Operations and Treatment staff and 

consultants on requirements for effluent from the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  

 Lake Mary Dam Outlet – With the assistance of Betty Hylton and legal counsel, we are presently researching 
the history of District operations in the Lakes Basin and are working on a formal response to the USFS letter 
related to several Lakes Basin items including:   

o The permit for District operations of the spillway equipment on Lake Mary Dam 

o A new Dam Hazard Analysis for the Lake Mary Dam 

o A potential improvement project to harden the Lake Mary Dam against a historic storm event 

o Interim high flow mitigation measures, including installing a remotely operated gate to replace the 
one remaining radial arm gate at the Lake Mary outlet structure 

 USGS-Proposed Communications Tower and Lease – The USGS has received the Board’s input from the 
August meeting and is considering coming back with more detail on their proposal to construct a 
communications tower on District property to upgrade their equipment and system reliability.  The USGS 
currently leases space from the District for office and computer space, communications equipment, and 
GPS antennas.  The office and computer space would not be changed by the proposal and the USGS wishes 
to include that in a new lease on the site.  The project would be funded by the California Volcano 
Observatory.  This project would require an environmental (CEQA) analysis, potentially through the Town 
of Mammoth Lakes Planning process, and will also require NEPA because it would be federally funded. 

Permits 
 
Both connection and construction permit activity has been robust.  Highlights include the following:  
 

 Laundry Annex – The commercial laundry facility in the Industrial Park needs to expand into a second 
building.  Staff has been working with the applicant to make sure the existing meter, lateral, and sewer are 
adequate to serve the whole facility.  The building upgrade also calls for the addition of fire sprinklers.   

 Mammoth Disposal – With the pending closure of Benton Crossing Landfill, Mammoth Disposal is working 
on upgrades to their facilities in the Industrial Park to adapt them to the long-haul transfer waste 
management model.  They are proposing to connect large floor drains collecting any liquid that drains out 
of the trucks to the sanitary sewer.  District staff will be working with them to find a different solution based 
on that dumping industrial stormwater into the sanitary sewer is not allowed.  

 
 



")

Snowcreek VII
(upgrade to 6")

Mammoth View Geothermal Well

!.

Mammoth Springs
Resort

Well 32

BLM 2 Deep Geothermal
Reservoir Monitoring Well

WWTP Emergency
Power Upgrade

")

Town Multi-Use Facility

Mammoth Creek Inn

")

Mono County Civic Center

540 Mixed
Use Project

")

")

2020 Construction Crew

Lakeview Townhomes

!.
!.

!.

Mammoth Disposal

Laundry Annex Expansion

"/

Chaparral Townhomes

!.

2020 Construction Crew

Laurel Pond
Monitoring Wells

Center St. Monitoring Well

Mammoth Community Water District
P.O. Box 597, Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546
(760) 934-2596   FAX: (760) 934-2143

®
0 1,000 2,000500 FeetEngineering Department Report

Construction Permits and Projects - September 2020

Legend

")

"/
Complete Construction
- Requires MCWD Acceptance

Issued Permit
- Construction Remaining

!. Permit Application Received

MCWD Project



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-5 

Information Systems Report 09-17-2020  

September 2020 
 

  

Page 1 of 2 Justin Mulbay – Information Services Manager MCWD 

 

Executive Summary 

MCWD has been assigned project managers and started implementation work for the Tyler Technologies 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software, which is expected to take the next six to twelve months for 
full implementation. Staff continue to evaluate an R900 Transition Plan from Ferguson/Neptune for 
MCWD to move from R450 to R900 collector and endpoint meter reading system technology. Currently, 
MCWD is working with Neptune/Ferguson to evaluate installation options at the two R900 collector 
antenna sites Staff have received quotes and are reviewing options for an A/C unit replacement in the 
MCWD Server Room. Lastly, several MCWD GIS mapping products are underway or have been completed 
over the past month, with Backflow and Fire Flow Collector field projects wrapping up for the season. 

Hardware Systems 

• Ongoing meetings and discussions with Ferguson/Neptune regarding a transition plan proposal to 
install two R900 collectors on the MCWD AMI System this fall under a pilot study for R900 endpoint 
technology; MCWD staff are currently reviewing installation and construction options at Timber 
Ridge and Bluffs collector sites. Space constraints and significant antenna heights are presenting 
challenges. 

• Continued progress on current Workstation Replacement Program; all laptops and one desktop 
deployed, five desktop installs remain 

• Ordered additional iPads under MCWD Verizon account for Mechanical Maintenance Department to 
further utilize access to GIS and Neptune data in the field 

• Deployment and administration of webcams, monitors, and peripheral equipment to support 
COVID-19 remote work arrangements for staff 

• Ongoing hardware support, maintenance, and updates 
 

Software Systems 

• MCWD staff is conducting bi-weekly implementation meetings with recently assigned Tyler 
Technologies project managers. Datasets are being prepared and staff will begin work on InCode 
Financial portion of the software prior to EnerGov civic utility components implementation. Full 
agency implementation will follow. 

• Worked with Laserfiche support and CBT to create appropriate firewall rules to execute Laserfiche 
Administration Console on MCWD Executive Assistant PC 

• Continued troubleshooting issues with Neptune 360 data transfers; Springbrook import Premise Key 
and Meter ID, WaterSmart data gaps, leak notifications, etc.  

• Downloaded and installed latest Bluebeam version for MCWD Engineering and ISD staff 
• Completed MS Server 2012 to MS Server 2019 Operating System upgrade on MCWDSVR12 file share 

server during non-business hours; server fully operational by start of business on August 17th with 
no down time incurred. 

• Ongoing software support, maintenance, and updates. 
 
Administrative 

• Facilitating technology needs for upcoming Mono County Health Officer Order requiring MCWD 
employees to screen for COVID-19 symptoms upon arrival daily at MCWD property  



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-5 

Information Systems Report 09-17-2020  

September 2020 
 

  

Page 2 of 2 Justin Mulbay – Information Services Manager MCWD 

 

• Continuing to work with Engineering Department updating several Forms: Construction Permit and 
Fees and Charges, Email Green Code Upgrade Application, Email New Structure Connection Permit 
Application, Email Remodel Addition Application, and Landscape Irrigation Permit Application 

• ISD and Plant Maintenance evaluating solutions for problematic A/C unit in MCWD Server Room; 
two replacement quotes have been received to date, with project expected to undergo planning and 
budget discussions over the next several months. 

• Continued administration of VoIP phones, iPads, laptops.  
 

Network 

• Managing and monitoring VPN connections and devices as COVID-19 situation continues to evolve 
• All network systems secure, no data loss or intrusions 

 
GIS 

• MLFPD Hydrant Collector application used in the field to facilitate GIS hydrant fire flow information 
between MCWD and MLFPD. All hydrant flow data received to date has been delivered back to 
MLFPD, and the project is nearing completion for the year with the end of the MLFPD hydrant 
testing season in September. Overall, the program was a great success and both agencies plan to 
incorporate improvements to the workflow and continue the collaborative MCWD/MLFPD Fire Flow 
Testing Program in the future. 

• Cleaned up MCWD Meter Maps in Master GIS; all meter maps are current and attached in MCWD 
GIS portal, replaced and field verified all missing meter maps, and developing a Meter Map Collector 
application for Mechanical Maintenance to access maps in the field.  

• Developing and integrating new Air Release Valve layer into MCWD Master GIS and infraMap asset 
maintenance program 

• Continuing to clean and assimilate Backflow Specialties Inc. (BSI) GIS data from the 2020 Backflow 
Survey Collector project that will serve as a tool for ongoing Backflow program administration 

• Updated Mono County Courthouse project in Master GIS 
• Produced MCWD Lakes Basin Diversion Structures Map for Conservation/Public Relations 
• August Monthly Permits and Projects Map for Engineering Department 
 
Websites 

• ISD continues to refine the new WordPress MCWD Intranet site for functionality and aesthetics 
• Mammoth Creek Streamflow Data ending 8/31/20 posted to Surface Water page 
• Updated Indoor (Conservation) page with list of plumbers that have passed the District’s Leak 

Detection Course 
• Posted all materials related to August Board activities 
• Continued maintenance and security for all MCWD web platforms: MCWD Internet, MCWD Intranet, 

and MCWD GIS Portal 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-6 

Personnel Services Department Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 1 of 1 Chris Weibert – Principal Administrative Analyst MCWD 
 

Administration 
 

• Continuous and ongoing activities associated with day-to-day administration, including but not limited to: 
○ Administrative, organizational and operational policy development, guidelines, implementation 

and related day-to-day projects 
o Non-personnel and personnel-based legal matters, e.g., ADA/FEHA, COBRA/CalCOBRA, Unfair 

Labor Practice Charges, etc. 
• Ongoing activities associated with classification maintenance plan 
• Legislative/Client Update 09/2020 (provided by LCW/CSDA): 

o None to report at this time 

Workforce Planning 
 

• Ongoing facilitation of contract extra help needs (Maintenance, Operations, and Engineering Departments) 
filled by Sierra Employment Services 

• Ongoing facilitation of Maintenance Department recruitment due to promotion 
• Ongoing monitoring of FMLA/CFRA determinations processed for statutorily protected leave and ADA/FEHA 

accommodation for some departments 
• Ongoing monitoring of Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) and related regulation updates 
• Facilitate L’Abri COA Board Meeting (via online) 08/18/2020 

Risk/Safety/Training 
 

• Risk/Safety: 
o Process safety tailgate and wellness activity logs for 08/2020 safety incentive program 
o Monthly restock of Cal/OSHA compliant first aid safety kits at all locations 
o Continuous and ongoing activities associated with the Injury and Illness Prevention Program policy 

development and guidelines 
o Continuous and ongoing activities associated with manual to electronic conversion of Cal/OSHA 

required Hazard Communication Safety Data Sheets (SDS) 
o Effective Tuesday, 07/21/2020, MCWD at Level 2 of the Risk Minimization and Outbreak Response 

Plan; maintain continuous observance of Public Health Orders related to COVID-19 
o Claims received and/or processed: 
 None received or processed 

 

• Training: 
o Webcasts/onsite/offsite training processed, provided, attended, and/or proctored this month: 
 Wienhoff – Designated Employer Representative (DER) for DOT Training (08/27/2020) 
 ACWA JPIA – Employee Benefits Renewal Webinar (09/01/2020) 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-7 

Regulatory Support Services 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 1 of 2 Betty Hylton – Senior Administrative Analyst MCWD 

Regulatory  

Lakes Basin Hazardous Fuels Reduction Project (Project)  
The Project start date is not established due to a pending decision from the Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR) on the requirements of prevailing wage. Coordination efforts are underway to ensure 
that all contacts for agencies involved are current and readily available. Mammoth Mountain Ski Area 
has generously agreed to house the contractors, as they did last year. Due to site conditions, it is 
important for the contractor to start soon in order to allow completion prior to snow falling.  

Conservation 

MCWD Customer Water 
Consumption 
The hot and dry weather pattern 
experienced in July continued in 
August, with MCWD’s weather 
station reporting .03 inches of 
precipitation. Despite unfavorable 
weather for outdoor conservation, 
irrigation usage was down 25% or 
5,000,000 gallons from 2013, the 
year utilized as the state baseline. 
Strict enforcement of irrigation 
allocations and the associated 
billing has afforded large savings 

from irrigation accounts. Overall consumption was 7,700,000 gallons less in August 2020 than August 
2013. 

 
Irrigation Violations  

Fiscal Year 1st Violation 2nd Violation  3rd Violation 

Single Family Home 147 26 0 

Commercial 7 3 0 

Condo 27 8 1 

 
Staff remains diligent to enforce our irrigation schedule to all customers, including dedicated irrigation 
accounts. No fines or shutoffs have been initiated this irrigation season, with most customers making 
adjustments prior to receiving additional violations.  

Leaks 
WaterSmart software continues to provide valuable analytics 
utilized for leak calls and irrigation violation tracking. The District 
continues to reach out to customers experiencing leaks above 
specified thresholds depending on their meter class. Response 
from customers receiving calls continues to be positive and 
significant water savings are realized through this program.  

Leak Calls by Customer Class 

Single Family Home 39 

Multi-Family Res. 2 

Other 3 

0

2000000

4000000

6000000

8000000

10000000

12000000

14000000

16000000

18000000

20000000

Irrigation Accounts - August Usage

2013 2020



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  Agenda Item: B-7 

Regulatory Support Services 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 2 of 2 Betty Hylton – Senior Administrative Analyst MCWD 

Rebate Program 

Public Affairs and Outreach 

Public Outreach 
A press release is drafted to notify the 
public of the Lakes Basin Hazardous Fuels 
Reduction Project. Release is pending the 
contractor selecting a start date.  

WaterSmart continues to be utilized to 
notify our customers of temporary water 
shutoffs due to District related 
construction. It has been valuable to have 
the ability to send text and emails through 
WaterSmart for notification, rather than 
going to customer’s doors.  

Local Agency Coordination 
Staff received a request from the Town of 
Mammoth Lakes to analyze water usage 
data in single family residences. The data 
provided gave the number of 0 use days in 
2020 compared to 2019. The information 
may be utilized to assist local agency in 
making decisions regarding COVID-19.  

Conservation Advertisements   
An advertisement reminding customers to 
reduce irrigation runtimes due to shorter 
days and cooler temperatures is running in 
bi-weekly in Mammoth Times and weekly in 
The Sheet for the month of September. 
Currently, radio ads are also running about 
keeping construction crews safe, irrigation schedules, and rebates.  

Public Information Officer – COVID-19 
The District is staying informed of changes to County, State, and federal regulations related to the 
pandemic. We are participating and listening to local meetings to ensure the District is up-to-date on 
information in our community regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Fiscal Year 2021 2020 2019 

Applications Processed 97 236 212 

High-efficiency Toilets 101 378 301 

Clothes Washers 12 23 33 

Dishwashers 18 13 N/A 

Gallons Saved 719,307 2,101,514 1,862,296  

Rebate Awards $29,862 $80,513 $65,645 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT                                Agenda Item: B-8 

General Manager’s Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 1 of 4  Mark Busby – General Manager MCWD 
 

The General Manager’s report is designed to summarize important District activities and to highlight 
developments that may require Board action in the future. 

 

Key activities for the month have been supporting regulatory planning efforts, continued support of capital 
projects, working with local agencies to secure additional groundwater monitoring, continuing to monitor COVID-
19 related issues and workforce planning. 

Departmental 

COVID-19 Response 

 The District continues to follow County and State guidelines related to COVID-19. Management staff are 
staying current with the dynamic situation by participating in and monitoring local, State, and Federal 
meetings. The District is now operating under Risk Level #2 of the District’s COVID-19 Risk Minimization 
and Outbreak Response Plan. Risk Level #2 provides for the following: 

o Maintaining essential water and wastewater services to the community 

o District front reception area is open to the public with modifications per Mono County Business 
Guidelines. All other offices are closed to the public or available by appointment only. 

o District staff working a mix of remote, on-call, and normal schedules 

o Following social distancing directives 

o Face coverings are required in all building common areas 

o Daily sanitizing of hard surfaces in common area work spaces 

Management continues to focus on staff communications, utilizing Zoom video conferencing to conduct a 
range of District meetings. 

Staff Resources and Management 

 Chris Weibert has applied for and accepted a promotional opportunity as a Principal Analyst in the 
Personnel Services Department. Chris has been working with the District in the Personal Services 
department for 6 years and brings over 20 years of Human Resources work experience to the position. 

 Exploring long-term workforce planning strategies with the Maintenance Superintendent to fill a vacant 
position in the Treatment Plant Maintenance Division. A posting for a Plant Maintenance Mechanical 
Technologist is posted as open until filled. 

 Recruitment and long-term workforce planning strategies development meetings with the Operations 
Superintendent due to staff retirement announcement. Blair Hafner, our lab technician of 34 years, 
recently announced that she will be retiring this fall with her last day of work being October 30th. 

 Continued monthly Engineering, Operations, and Maintenance (EOM) collaborative meetings, reporting 
on and tracking progress for current and future capital projects and programs 

 

Water Supply, Conservation, Power Production & Forecasting 

Total water produced in August 2020 was 123.8 million gallons, up from 119.3 million gallons in July 2020, and up 
from 109.6 million gallons in August 2019.  The average daily demand was 3.9 million gallons, with 23% coming 
from surface water and 77% from groundwater. 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT                                Agenda Item: B-8 

General Manager’s Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 2 of 4  Mark Busby – General Manager MCWD 
 

 
August stream flow requirements for Mammoth Creek were 7.2cfs.  Actual flows averaged 7.3cfs, ranging from 
6.2 to 9.0cfs. September flow requirements are 5.5cfs. As of September 1st Lake Mary has a balance of 413 acre 
feet, which is 68% of the District’s surface water storage capacity. 
   
August average daily wastewater flows were 1.48 mgd for a total of 45.7 million gallons for the month.   
 
Financial Management 

District water use revenue continues to be up compared to budget projections. This has partially off-set the 
temporary rate reduction provided to the community due to COVID-19 restrictions and associated financial 
hardship. This is compared to expenses which continue to track below budgeted amounts. 
 
The Finance department continues to communicate with Raftelis Financial, Inc. with regards to completing a 
Wastewater Rate Study by the end of 2020. 
 
Districts Contracts and Agreements 

The District plans to sign, after review is complete, an agreement with the USGS for continued quarterly 
groundwater sampling and analysis and also development of a new groundwater monitoring well. The annual 
agreement has traditionally covered sharing of funding between the USGS and MCWD for groundwater 
monitoring and analysis related the CDIV project. This year’s agreement also includes the cost for development of 
a new groundwater monitoring well in the Center Street area.  Cost for water-quality sampling and analysis is 
$95,100 and the cost of drilling a 750’ deep monitoring well is estimated at $352,686. The USGS anticipates 
contributing $17,593, subject to availability of cooperative matching funds. The total cost to the District of 
$430,193 was included in the District’s amended and approved FY21 capital budget. 
 
Other Departmental Activities 

 The Engineering Department continues to support the many active and planned construction projects at 
the District and throughout the community. This includes work on two well projects, Well #32 and Laurel 
Pond Monitoring wells, as well as planned improvements to the WWTP sludge hauling and dewatering 
process. 

 The Information Services Department (ISD) completed development of a new GIS backflow layer, 
provided maps in support of proposed Center Street monitoring well, and continues to support all 
departments as needed 

 The Maintenance Department continues to meet their maintenance goals and requirements for the 2020 
calendar year, in addition to a full construction schedule  

 Operations Department staff continue to keep water and wastewater production in compliance with all 
regulations 

Projects/Related 

 
MCWD Water Discharge Requirements 

The Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board’s (LRWQCB) recently notified MCWD staff of their intent to 
review and update the District’s Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) for effluent from the Wastewater 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT                                Agenda Item: B-8 

General Manager’s Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 3 of 4  Mark Busby – General Manager MCWD 
 

Treatment Plant. District staff are currently engaged with consultants and have responded to Lahontan’s 
administrative draft WDR. 
 
Geothermal/Groundwater Monitoring/Proposed CD IV Expansion Project 

BLM staff have applied for special use permits from the USFS and are continuing to move forward with 
development efforts for two wells near Old Shady Rest Campground. BLM’s expanded groundwater monitoring 
plan calls for the development of three monitoring wells, two near Old Shady Rest Campground and a third well In 
the Center Street area, just south of Main Street.  To complete the monitoring plan, BLM staff requested the 
District’s assistance in developing the third well near Center Street. 
 
As a result of BLM’s request for assistance with well development on Center Street, the District’s Board approved 
a budget amendment to fund the Center Street monitoring well.  The approved funding has allowed District staff 
to start working to secure a site for the well, which will put the Center Street well on a parallel development track 
with that of the two BLM wells. 
   
ORMAT continues to report that they are planning to have CD IV on line by late 2021 or early 2022. The first two 
production wells are planned to be developed in the Shady Rest Park area off Sawmill Road. ORMAT has also 
provided the District with a signed Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA). The agreement allows the District to view 
additional proprietary data from ORMAT providing a clearer picture of the groundwater aquifer system in our 
area.  
 
The additional groundwater monitoring is a result of District staff’s continued efforts working collaboratively with 
local agencies to maintain efforts to establish adequate groundwater monitoring for any notable effects from 
increased pumping as proposed by ORMAT’s CD IV expansion project. BLM staff stated at the last GMRP meeting 
that, once completed, the additional monitoring wells will be added to the existing Groundwater Monitoring and 
Response Plan (GMRP), which is a requirement of the CD IV geothermal expansion project in Basalt Canyon. The 
additional monitoring and baseline data will allow for better monitoring for any notable departures from baseline 
pressure, temperature, and water chemistry. If notable departures from baseline data are detected it would 
trigger a data review and analysis led by the BLM in consultation with ORMAT, MCWD, USGS, USFS, and 
GBUAPCD. The next GMRP meeting is scheduled for November 2021. 
 

Well 32 

Construction and testing of the Well #32 exploratory borehole was completed in July. Work is now underway to 
develop the borehole as a production well for inclusion to the District’s water distribution system. The decision 
was made to move forward with production well development after test results estimated production flows at 
1,500 gpm and also showed good water quality. Drilling work will continue through this September with final work 
at the well site scheduled for spring/summer 2020. 

 

USGS-Proposed Lease Extension 

The USGS currently leases space from the District for office and computer space, communications equipment, and 
antennas.  USGS staff has approached the District with a request to extend the existing lease for a period of two 
years. The two year lease extension would include a 3% increase in price to bring the annual lease amount in-line 
with current pricing. Moving forward the District will be working with the USGS to develop a longer term lease 



MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT                                Agenda Item: B-8 

General Manager’s Report 09-17-2020 

September 2020 
 

Page 4 of 4  Mark Busby – General Manager MCWD 
 

agreement which would account for present operations and any identified additions. 

 

The USGS has also expressed their desire to present to the Board at a later meeting, the benefits to the 
community of constructing a new communications tower on District property to upgrade their equipment and 
system reliability. 

 
Tank T-6 Rehabilitation 

Work on the rehabilitation of the District’s surface water Clearwell, Tank T-6, is presently under way, with the 
project scheduled to be complete by the end of September 2020. 
 

Lake Mary Dam USFS Hazard Analysis 

In April 2020 the USFS presented MCWD staff with a new Dam Hazard Analysis for the Lake Mary Dam. The topic 
was then brought to the MCWD Board for discussion and direction at a Special Board meeting. Discussion 
revolved around potential District participation in a basin-wide study, USFS improvement project which would 
harden the Lake Mary Dam against a historic storm event and interim high flow mitigation measures. As a result 
of direction from the Board, staff reached out to the USFS regarding the benefits of installing a remotely operated 
gate at the Lake Mary outlet structure. This would replace the one remaining radial arm gate as a mitigation 
measure. Staff also communicated to the USFS that they would need to see a more shovel ready project before 
considering participation in a basin-wide study. Recently the USFS has responded to the District on a number of 
Lakes Basin items including the permit for District operations of the spillway equipment on Lake Mary Dam. The 
District is presently preparing a formal response to the USFS requests. 
 



Stories in the Snow  

Mammoth Community Water District  

Program Proposal 
 

“Each snow crystal has a “story” – that is, the shape and size of each snow crystal provides insight into the 
atmospheric conditions in which it formed and tells us how much water it holds.” 

Program Summary 
Stories in the snow calls upon citizens and local students to collect images of freshly fallen snow crystals so that 
researchers may learn more about real time atmospheric conditions which influence local water resources. To 
understand these meteorological conditions during storms scientists can use weather stations and advanced remote 
sensing techniques, but the need exists to obtain objective images of snow crystals to ground remote observations in 
reality and to enable further interpretation of snow crystal characteristics. For four winters Stories in the Snow has 
grown its community of active citizen scientists in the Truckee and Carson watersheds to generate snow crystal images 
for Desert Research Institute scientists. Many of these citizen scientists are students in local classrooms who are eager 
researchers in their own right. Each winter Stories in the Snow educators work with middle school and high school 
science teachers to teach a lesson on snow crystal formation, and proper use of the Stories in the Snow kits to capture 
up-close images of snow crystals.  

This winter Stories in the Snow will be shifting to a virtual learning experience to address the unique needs of distance 
learning. To meet these demands our educators will work with teachers to get kits distributed and assist in teaching 
Stories in the Snow’s new four-part supplemental curriculum. This new supplemental curriculum is oriented towards 
middle school level students, but it is flexible enough to be geared towards a more technical high school audience. 
Furthermore, components of the Stories in the Snow lessons will be refined to address the unique hydrology and 
landscape of the Mammoth region to engage students in environmental science that is place based to their home town.  

What is Citizen Science? 
Citizen science invites community members to collaborate with professional scientists by participating in data collection 
and interpretation. Within the scope of Stories in the Snow researchers at Desert Research Institute have defined 
important questions to answer through the collection of ground-based snow crystal observations. Thus, in the Truckee 
and Carson basins educators and classrooms have been trained to be citizen scientists to assist in the collection of data 
for this process. Furthermore, through the experience, students will learn about important atmospheric and hydrologic 
science phenomena in the region. 

How it Works 

 

Classrooms are 
provided with 

Snowflake Capture 
Kits, training, and 

educational 
materials. 

Studetnts then 
capture images 
of snow crystals 

in a hands on 
learning exercise.

Classrooms then 
upload images 

into the database 
with metadata 

on location, 
temperature, etc.



Benefits of This Program 
This program will involve students across the region in real scientific research. It will improve their understanding of the 
weather and climate phenomena that affect us every day. Direct engagement in inquiry-based learning will open doors 
for STEM in the future, and we hope that this curiosity and engagement will also result in lifelong stewardship of the 
land and the important resources on which we depend.  



Stor ie s in  t he  Snow
S.T.E.A.M Curriculum with N.G.S.S. for 6th Grade

 Produced by the Desert Research Institute

 Haley Santos

 Christopher King

 Ana Sofia Remis

 Questions, updates, and more information at www.dri.edu/stories-in-the-snow
 We appreciate your feedback.

1

C u r r i c u l u m  G u i d e  f o r  6 t h  G r a d e

b y  H a le y  S a n t o s , C h r i s t o p h e r  K in g , &  A n a  S o fi a  R e m is

P r o d u c e d  b y  t h e  D e s e r t  R e s e a r c h  In s t i t u t e

 Q u e s t io n s , u p d a t e s , a n d  m o r e  in fo rm a t io n  a t  
w w w .d r i.e d u /s to r ie s -in -th e -sn o w
  W e  a p p r e c ia t e  y o u r  f e e d b a c k .



 

3

W h a t  t o  K n o w  B e f o r e  Y o u  B e g i n
 S t o r ie s  in  t h e  S n o w  is  a  c i t i z e n  s c ie n c e  p r o je c t  t h a t  h a r n e s s e s  t h e  
e n t h u s ia sm  a n d  p o t e n t ia l  o f  c o m m u n it y  m e m b e r s  t o  f u e l  s c ie n t i s t s ’ 
u n d e r s t a n d in g  o f  t h e  a tm o s p h e r ic  c o n d i t io n s . 

 T h e  a im  o f  t h is  c u r r ic u lu m  is  t o  p r o v id e  y o u n g  s c ie n t i s t s  w i t h  h a n d s -
o n  a c t iv i t ie s  t o  d is c o v e r  t h e  s c ie n c e  b e h in d  s n o w  c r y s t a l  f o rm a t io n . E a c h  
le s s o n  b u i ld s  o n  t h e  la s t  t o  g e t  t h e  s t u d e n t s  t o  t h e i r  e n d  g o a l, w h ic h  i s  t o  b e  
a b le  t o  a n s w e r  t h e  q u e s t io n : h o w  d o e s  a  s n o w  c r y s t a l  g e t  i t s  s h a p e ?   A lo n g  
t h e  w a y , s t u d e n t s  le a r n  a b o u t  t h e  s c ie n t ifi c  m e t h o d , t h e  w a t e r  c y c le , a n d  
t h e  p r o p e r t ie s  o f  w a t e r.

 T h is  c u r r ic u lu m  is  m a d e  fo r  m id d le  s c h o o l  s t u d e n t s , a lt h o u g h  s e c t io n s  
o f  i t  h a v e  b e e n  p r e s e n t e d  t o  s t u d e n t s  a s  y o u n g  a s  1 0  a n d  a s  o ld  a s  1 8 .

 W e  m a d e  t h is  c u r r ic u lu m  w it h  t e c h n o lo g ic a l  a n d  m a t e r ia l  l im it a t io n s  
in  m in d , t h e r e fo r e  a l l  t h a t  i s  n e e d e d  i s  a  p r o je c t o r  o r  s c r e e n , a n d  a  p r in t e r  f o r  
w o r k s h e e t s . A c t iv i t ie s  t h a t  r e q u i r e  o t h e r  m a t e r ia ls  a r e  o p t io n a l  a n d  c r e a t e d  
w it h  lo w e s t  p o s s ib le  c o s t  in  m in d .

 T h is  c u r r ic u lu m  r e q u i r e s  t h e  u s e  o f  a  jo u r n a l  o r  n o t e b o o k  in  w h ic h  
s t u d e n t s  a r e  p r o m p t e d  t o  r e s p o n d  t h r ic e  p e r  le s s o n . E a c h  o f  t h e s e  
r e s p o n s e s  c a n  b e  u s e d  a s  a n  e v a lu a t io n . In  a d d i t io n , le c t u r e s  n o t e s  a n d  
v o c a b u la r y  s h o u ld  b e  t a k e n  d o w n  in  t h e  s c ie n c e  jo u r n a l  o r  n o t e b o o k .

 E d u c a t o r s  c a n  c o n t a c t  u s  f o r  a n  e d u c a t o r  r a t e  d is c o u n t  o n  S t o r ie s  in  
t h e  S n o w  k i t s  r e f e r e n c e d  in  L e s s o n  1 . 

 I f  y o u  o n ly  h a v e  t im e  fo r  o n e  le s s o n  in  y o u r  c la s s r o o m , L e s s o n  1  
s u m m a r iz e s  t h e  m a jo r i t y  o f  t h e  c u r r ic u lu m , a lb ie t  in  a  w a y  t h a t  a c h ie v e s  
m o r e  b r e a d t h  t h a n  d e p t h  w it h  a n y  o f  t h e  t o p ic s . 

 L e s s o n s  2  t h r o u g h  4  b u i ld  o n  c o n c e p t s  b r o u g h t  f o r t h  in  L e s s o n  1  w it h  
m u c h  m o r e  d e p t h . 

 L e s s o n  4  in v i t e s  s t u d e n t s  t o  g o  o u t  d u r in g  a  s n o w  s t o rm  t o  c a p t u r e  
lo c a l  c a s e  s t u d ie s . T h is  a c t iv i t y  c a n  b e  d o n e  a t  a n y  p o in t  d u r in g  t h e  
c u r r ic u lu m  w h e n  w e a t h e r  p e rm it s . 



4

P e d a g o g y  &  E v a l u a t i o n  O p p o r t u n i t i e s

 O u r  c u r r ic u lu m  fo l lo w s  t h e  5 E  le a r n in g  c y c le  d e v e lo p e d  b y  t h e  
B io lo g ic a l  S c ie n c e s  C u r r ic u lu m  S t u d y . 

 M a p p e d  t o  t h e  5 e s :
  E n g a g e : P r im e r  
  E x p lo r e : J o u r n a l  P r o m p t
  E x p la in : L e c t u r e
  E la b o r a t e : A c t iv i t y
  E v a lu a t e : C lo s in g  J o u r n a l  P r o m p t  a n d /o r  V o c a b u la r y  W o r k s h e e t

 T h e  in i t ia l  jo u r n a l  e n t r y  i s  w r i t t e n  t o  e n g a g e  t h e  s t u d e n t  in  t h e  
le s s o n ’s  m a t e r ia l. B e c a u s e  t h is  a s s ig n m e n t  o c c u r s  b e fo r e  t h e  m a in  b o d y  o f  
t h e  le c t u r e  o r  le s s o n , o n e  w a y  o f  e v a lu a t in g  t h e  in i t ia l  p r o m p t  i s  b y  g iv in g  
p a r t ic ip a t io n  p o in t s  f o r  s a t i s f a c t o r y  r e s p o n s e s  t h a t  s h o w  a  s t u d e n t  r e a d  a n d  
c o m p le t e d  t h e  p r e -le s s o n  p r im e r  b e fo r e  t h e  s t a r t  o f  t h e  le s s o n .

 T h e  s e c o n d  jo u r n a l  e n t r y  s e r v e s  a s  a  p o s t -a c t iv i t y  r e fl e c t io n  t h a t  
a l lo w s  t e a c h e r s  t o  g a u g e  w h a t  s t u c k  t h e  m o s t  a n d  a d d r e s s  a n y  in c o r r e c t  
in fo , w h i le  g iv in g  s t u d e n t s  a  p la c e  t o  p a r k  f u r t h e r  q u e s t io n s  a n d  n o t ic e .

 T h e  fi n a l  s t u d e n t  d e l iv e r a b le  in  e a c h  le s s o n  i s  a n  e v a lu a t iv e  a c t iv i t y , 
a s s ig n m e n t  o r  w o r k s h e e t  t h a t  c h a l le n g e s  t h e  s t u d e n t s  t o  a p p ly  t h e  
v o c a b u la r y  a n d  s c ie n t ifi c  c o n c e p t s  t h e y ’v e  s t u d ie d .



7

L e s s o n  1 :  C i t i z e n  S c i e n c e  
E s s e n t i a l  Q u e s t i o n
W h a t  i s  c i t i z e n  s c ie n c e , a n d  h o w  c a n  I  b e  a n  e n g a g e d  c i t i z e n ?

T o p  T a k e a w a y s
• S W B A T  e x p la in  h o w  h u m id i t y  a n d  t e m p e r a t u r e  a ff e c t  s n o w fl a k e  s h a p e
• S W B A T  s u b m it  r e le v a n t  d a t a  t o  t h e  C i t i z e n  S c ie n c e  T a h o e  a p p
• S W B A T  m a p  t h e  s c ie n t ifi c  m e t h o d  t o  h is t o r ic a l  e x p e r im e n t s  

N e x t  G e n e r a t io n  S c ie n c e  S t a n d a r d s

L i f e  S c i e n c e :

 M S -L S 2 -3

P h y s i c a l  S c i e n c e :

 M S -P S 1 -1

 M S -P S 1 -4

E a r t h  a n d  S p a c e  S c i e n c e s :

 M S -E S S 2 -2

 M S -E S S 2 -4

 M S -E S S 2 -5

C r o s s c u t t i n g  C o n c e p t s :

 S c a le , P r o p o r t io n  a n d  Q u a n t i t y

 C a u s e  a n d  E ff e c t

 E n e r g y  a n d  M a t t e r

M a t e r i a l s
L e s s o n  1  P o w e r p o in t
S t o r ie s  in  t h e  S n o w  K i t s , o r
M a c r o  L e n s e s  &  F e lt  P a d s

T e a c h e r  P r e p a r a t i o n
R e v ie w  L e s s o n  1  P o w e r p o in t  N o t e s
P r in t  o u t  L e s s o n  1  P r im e r

1  h o u r

V o c a b u la r y
   • S n o w  F la k e
   • S n o w  C r y s t a l
   • S u p e r c o o le d  W a t e r
   • F r e e z in g  T e m p e r a t u r e  
   • H u m id i t y
   • H e x a g o n
   • A e r o s o l
   • P o la r i t y  
   • R im e
   • C r y s t a l
   • L a t t ic e
   • G r a u p e l



9

T o p  T a k e a w a y s
• S W B A T  d e s c r ib e  t h e  d iff e r e n t  p h a s e s  o f  w a t e r
• S W B A T  d e s c r ib e  t h e  h y d r o g e n  b o n d  in  w a t e r  m o le c u le s , t h e  e le m e n t s  w a t e r  i s     

m a d e  u p  o f , a n d  t h e  p o la r i t y  t h a t  m a in t a in s  t h e  s t r u c t u r e  o f  t h e  w a t e r  m o le c u le
• S W B A T  d e s c r ib e  t h e  d iff e r e n c e  b e tw e e n  a  s n o w fl a k e  a n d  a  s n o w  c r y s t a l
• S W B A T  d e s c r ib e  t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  c r y s t a l  n u c le a t io n

L e s s o n  2 :  W a t e r  1 0 1  
E s s e n t i a l  Q u e s t i o n s
 W h a t  i s  w a t e r  m a d e  o f ?
 W h a t  i s  t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  s n o w  c r y s t a l  f o rm a t io n ?

N e x t  G e n e r a t io n  S c ie n c e  S t a n d a r d s  

P h y s i c a l  S c i e n c e :

 M S -P S 1 -1

 M S -P S 1 -2

 M S -P S 1 -4

C r o s s c u t t i n g  C o n c e p t s :

 S c a le , P r o p o r t io n  a n d  Q u a n t i t y

 C a u s e  a n d  E ff e c t

 S t r u c t u r e  a n d  F u n c t io n

M a t e r i a l s
L e s s o n  2  P o w e r p o in t  : P r o p e r t ie s  o f  W a t e r
L e s s o n  2  P o w e r p o in t : H 2 O  t o  S n o w

O p t i o n a l  A c t i v i t i e s :   
S u p e r c o o le d  W a t e r :  
A  f r e e z e r  
P u r ifi e d  w a t e r  
A  t im e r  

C r y s t a l l i z a t i o n :   
S u g a r, s a lt  o r  b o r a x  
W a t e r  
S t r in g  
P ip e  c le a n e r s  
P e n c i ls  
C le a r  c u p s  
H o t  p la t e  
S c is s o r s

T e a c h e r  P r e p a r a t i o n
• R e v ie w  b o t h  L e s s o n  2  P o w e r p o in t  

N o t e s
• R e a d  b a c k g r o u n d  in fo rm a t io n

 1 .5  h o u r s

V o c a b u la r y  
   • H y d r o g e n  B o n d
   • C r y s t a l l i z a t io n
   • C r y s t a l  N u c le a t io n
   • D e p o s i t io n
   • P la sm a  (o p t io n a l)
   • Io n iz e  (o p t io n a l)



13

L e s s o n  3 :  W a t e r  a s  a  S y s t e m  
a n d  a  R e s o u r c e
E s s e n t i a l  Q u e s t i o n s  
W h a t  i s  t h e  jo u r n e y  o f  w a t e r  f r o m  s t a r t in g  p o in t  t o  y o u r  t a p ?  
W h y  i s  s n o w p a c k  im p o r t a n t ?

T o p  T a k e a w a y s
• S W B A T  d e s c r ib e  t h e  jo u r n e y  o f  w a t e r  f r o m  c lo u d  t o  g r o u n d  t o  t a p  
• S W B A T  d e s c r ib e  o r o g r a p h ic  l i f t , a i r  p r e s s u r e  s y s t e m s , a n d  c lo u d  c o n d i t io n s

N e x t  G e n e r a t io n  S c ie n c e  S t a n d a r d s  

L i f e  S c i e n c e :

 M S -L S 2 -3

E a r t h  a n d  S p a c e  S c i e n c e s :

 M S -E S S 2 -1

 M S -E S S 2 -2

 M S -E S S 2 -4

 M S -E S S 2 -5

C r o s s c u t t i n g  C o n c e p t s :

 C a u s e  a n d  E ff e c t

 E n e r g y  a n d  M a t t e r

 S t a b i l i t y  a n d  C h a n g e

 S c a le , P r o p o r t io n  a n d  Q u a n t i t y

M a t e r i a l s
L e s s o n  3  M o v e m e n t  o f  W a t e r  
P o w e r P o in t  

O p t i o n a l  A c t i v i t y :
Q u a r t  c le a r  p la s t ic  b a g s  
M a r k e r s  
T a p e  
W a t e r
B lu e  f o o d  c o lo r in g  

   1  h o u r

V o c a b u la r y  
   • T h e  W a t e r  C y c le
   • E v a p o r a t io n
   • C o n d e n s a t io n
   • P r e c ip i t a t io n
   • O r o g r a p h ic  L i f t
   • R a in  S h a d o w
   • A c c u m u la t io n
   • R e s e r v o i r
   • In fi lt r a t io n
   • S u r f a c e  &  S u b -s u r f a c e  R u n o ff
   • H y d r o lo g y
   • A v a la n c h e
   • D r o u g h t

T e a c h e r  P r e p a r a t i o n
• R e v ie w  L e s s o n  3  P o w e r p o in t  N o t e s
• R e a d  b a c k g r o u n d  in fo rm a t io n



16

L e s s o n  4 :  M o r p h o l o g y  &  C a s e  
S t u d i e s  
E s s e n t i a l  Q u e s t i o n s  
W h a t  i s  a  m o r p h o lo g y  d ia g r a m ?  
W h a t  f a c t o r s  in fl u e n c e  a  s n o w  c r y s t a l ’s  s h a p e ?

To p  T a k e a w a y : 
S W B A T  d is c u s s  t h e  d e v e lo p m e n t  o f  N a k a y a ’s  s n o w  c r y s t a l  m o r p h o lo g y  d ia g r a m
SW B AT  d e s c r ib e  t h e  d iff e r e n t  m o r p h o lo g ie s  o f  s n o w fl a k e s
S W B A T  g a t h e r, a n a ly z e , a n d  p lo t  d a t a

   3 0  m in

N e x t  G e n e r a t io n  S c ie n c e  S t a n d a r d s

P h y s i c a l  S c ie n c e :

 M S -P S 1 -1

C r o s s c u t t in g  C o n c e p t s :

 C a u s e  a n d  E ff e c t

 P a t t e r n s

 S t r u c t u r e  a n d  F u n c t io n

S c ie n c e  a n d  E n g in e e r in g  P r a c t i c e s :

 A n a ly z in g  a n d  In te rp re t in g  D a ta

M a t e r i a l s
L e s s o n  4  P r im e r

V o c a b u la r y  
   • M o r p h o lo g y  
   • C a s e  S t u d y

T e a c h e r  P r e p a r a t i o n
• P r in t  o r  d r a w  o n  b o a r d  e m p t y  

s n o w fl a k e  m o r p h o lo g y  d ia g r a m
• P r in t  o u t  e x a m p le  s n o w fl a k e  fi le s
• R e a d  b a c k g r o u n d  in fo rm a t io n





 Agenda Item:  C-2 
 09-17-2020 

 Page 1 of 1 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM 

 
Subject:  Discussion and Possible Approval of a Request to Refinance a Primary Loan under the 
Employee Home Purchase Assistance Program 
 
Information Provided By:   Jeff Beatty, Finance Manager 
 

Background 
 
In March of 2015, Matt Jaroslawski purchased a home in Mammoth Lakes using the District’s Shared Value 
Employee Home Purchase Assistance (EHPA) program.    
 
The EHPA policy requires any refinance of the primary loan be reviewed and approved by the Board to insure 
the District’s financial interests are protected.  If a refinance is done to withdraw cash from the equity in the 
home, the loan-to-value ratio increases and the District’s security interest decreases. 

Discussion 
 
Mr. Jaroslawski is requesting the Board approve his request to refinance his primary loan to obtain a lower 
interest rate and a shorter loan term.  The refinanced loan will be for the remaining principal balance of the 
original loan plus fees associated with the refinance with no additional cash withdrawn from the equity.  

Financial Impact 
 
There will be no financial impact to the District if this request to refinance is approved.  Because the term and 
principle balance of the primary loan are reduced, the District’s security interest in the property is improved. 

Requested Action 
 
Consider and approve Mr. Jaroslawski’s request to refinance his primary loan to obtain a lower interest rate. 



 Agenda Item:  C-3 
 09-17-2020 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
Subject:   Discussion and Possible Approval of a Lease Extension with the USGS 
 
Information Provided By:   Mark Busby, General Manager 
 

Background  
 
Since June 1999, Mammoth Community Water District has had a lease with the USGS for use of office 
space and areas which allow for the placement of equipment used by USGS to support their on-going 
volcanic and seismic hazards monitoring program for the Long Valley Caldera area. The original lease 
expired in June of 2009, and was renewed with a termination date of June 30, 2020.  

Discussion  
 
The USGS and the District desire to continue the positive and cooperative arrangement that the parties 
have had for the past 21 years. The District and USGS are working on an updated longer term lease, but 
in the meantime a short-form, two year lease extension is proposed to prevent any disruption to daily 
activities. 

The annual rent over the past eleven years has been set at $9,841.44, paid in monthly installments of 
$820.21. The proposed supplemental lease agreement reflects an increase to $10,200 annually or $850 
per month.   

Attached to this Agenda Item is the supplemental lease agreement as well as the lease that was 
executed in 2009. 

Fiscal Impact 

If the extension is approved, the District will realize $20,400 in total revenue over the term of the lease. 

Requested Action 

Staff recommends approval of the two year lease extension of the USGS lease to help support an 
important long-term federal scientific and public safety service to the Mammoth area.  



GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 
PUBLIC BUILDINGS SERVICE 

SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 

NO. 1 
DATE 

09/4/2020 
TO LEASE NO. 

GS- SF-2-USGS-MP-453 
ADDRESS OF PREMISES 

1315 Meridian Blvd., Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546, Tower Facility Coordinates: Lat. 37-38-30N- Long. 118-56-44.5 W 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this date and between 

Mammoth Community Water District, (hereinafter called the "Lessor") 

whose address is 

1315 Meridian Blvd., Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546, 

and the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, hereinafter called the Government: 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend the above 

lease executed on 7/1/2009, SF-2-USGS-MP-453 paragraph 2 and paragraph 4. 

NOW THEREFORE, these parties for the considerations hereinafter mentioned covenant and agree that the said 

Lease is amended, effective   September 4, 2020 
 

, as follows:
2. TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Premises with their appurtenances for the term beginning July 1, 2020 through 
June 30, 2022 subject to 120-day termination rights by providing written notice after July 1, 2021.

4. RENTAL AMOUNT. The Government shall pay the Lessor annual rent in the amount of $10,200 at the rate of
$850 per month payable in arrears. The Lessor shall furnish to the Government, as part of the rental 
consideration, electricity for the operation of approved equipment as stated in the lease.

All other terms and conditions of the lease shall remain in force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties subscribed their names as of the above date. 

LESSOR 

BY 

(Signature) (Title) 
IN PRESENCE OF 

(Signature) (Address) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

BY 

(Signature) (Official Title)

GSA FORM 276 (REV. 7-67) 























 Agenda Item:  C-4 
 09-17-2020 

Page 1 of 1 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM 

 
Subject:   Discussion and Possible Approval of Updating the Records Retention and Disposal 
Schedules  
 
Information Provided By:   Stephanie Hake, Executive Assistant 
 

Background 
 
The Mammoth Community Water District (MCWD) contracted with Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc., to 
review and update the District’s records retention schedules in 2018. The Board adopted the schedules 
through Resolution No. 06-21-18-14.  

Discussion 
 
It is the District’s goal to periodically review and update the records retention schedules to maintain 
compliance with law and technology and how it applies to the management of MCWD’s records.   
 
Earlier this year the District again contacted with Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. to review and update 
the schedules. Revisions were provided to staff in a ‘track changes’ format, and are included as an 
attachment.  
 
The proposed revisions have been reviewed and approved by the District’s legal counsel.  
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
None 
      

Requested Action 
 
Staff requests that the Board of Directors approve the updated Records Retention Schedules.     

 



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   CONSERVATION Page CONS-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CONSERVATION

Conservation CONS-001 Conservation / Rebate Database Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag, Ppr
Data Fields / Records are 

interrelated; GC §60201

Conservation CONS-002

Data Disclosure Forms 

(Authorization for Third Parties to 

access data for high usage / leak 

/ violation data)

Upon 

Expiration or 

Rescission 

by Customer

Upon 

Expiration or 

Rescission 

by Customer

  Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Conservation CONS-003
Indoor/Outdoor Incentive 

Program: Application Denied
5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Conservation CONS-004

Indoor/Outdoor Incentive 

Program: Application, Payment 

Request, & Receipts.

5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Conservation CONS-005

Irrigation Account Letters:  

Maximum Applied Water 

Allowances

5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 

meets municipal 

government auditing 

requirements, and may have 

grant funding; GC §60201

Conservation CONS-006
Urban Water Management Plans 

(UWMP)
P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After  

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Conservation CONS-007 Violation Database Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag, Ppr
Data Fields / Records are 

interrelated; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-1

Office of 

Record

Retention 

No.
Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR) or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

DISTRICT-WIDE (Used by All Departments)

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

DW-001

Accounts Payable (Invoices, 

Petty Cash, Travel Expense 

Reimbursements, etc.)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Until 

Paid
Mag, Ppr

Also see Grants.  copies; GC 

§60200

District 

Secretary
DW-002

Agendas, Agenda Packets 

Board of Directors, 

Subcommittees (Technical 

Services, Finance)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag, Ppr copies; GC §60200

District 

Secretary
DW-003

Agreements & Contracts (ALL, 

Except for Employee Loans or 

General Manager's Contract)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag, Ppr
Send all originals to the District 

Secretary; GC §60200

Lead 

Department
DW-004

Agreements & Contracts - ALL:  

ADMINISTRATIVE RECORDS 

(Correspondence, project 

schedules, copies of invoices, 

backup, insurance certificates 

etc.)  Also see grant retention, if 

applicable.

Completion + 

10 years

Completion + 

10 years
  

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Also see Grants.  Covers E&O 

Statute of Limitations (insurance 

certificates are filed with 

agreement); Published Audit 

Standards=4-7 years; Statute of 

Limitations: Contracts & 

Spec's=4 years, Wrongful 

Death=comp. + 5 years, 

Developers must retain their 

records for completion + 10 

years; CCP §§336(a), 337 et. 

seq., GC §60201

Lead 

Department
DW-005

Agreements & Contracts:  

Unsuccessful bids

Bid Opening 

+ 2 years

Bid Opening 

+ 2 years
Mag, Ppr

Special Districts are required to 

keep public works unaccepted 

bids for 2 years; GC 

§60201(d)(11)

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-2

Office of 

Record

Retention 

No.
Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR) or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

DW-006
Association Records (external 

associations - e.g., ACWA, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr Non-records; GC §60201 et seq.

DW-007 Bids:  See Agreements Mag, Ppr

DW-008
Brochures: See Reference 

Materials
Mag, Ppr

Finance DW-009
Budgets - Finals, Drafts, 

Reports, Worksheets

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  

Current 

Fiscal Year

Mag, Ppr GC §§60200, 53901

Personnel 

Services / 

Risk 

Manage.

DW-010 Claims / Litigation

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Before 

Settlement
Mag, Ppr GC §§60200, 60201 et seq.

Lead Dept. DW-011
Clippings / Newspaper 

Clippings

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr Non-records; GC §60201 et seq.

Lead Dept. DW-012

Committees, Task Forces, 

Associations, Commissions,  & 

Boards:  External 

Organizations (e.g. Association 

of California Water Agencies, 

etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr Non-records

DW-013 Contracts:  See Agreements Mag, Ppr

DW-014
Copies or duplicates of any 

record

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag, Ppr GC §60200

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-3

Office of 

Record

Retention 

No.
Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR) or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-015
Correspondence - Regulatory 

Agencies

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 10 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 10 

years

Yes:  While 

Active 

Issues

Mag, Ppr

District preference; some 

correspondence from Regulatory 

Agencies need to be retained for 

long periods of time; GC §60201

Dept. that 

Authors 

Document 

or 

Receives 

the District's 

Original 

Document

DW-016

Correspondence - Routine 

(e .g. Administrative, Chronological, 

Communications, General Files, 

Letters, Memorandums, 

Miscellaneous Reports, Reading 

Files, Working Files, etc.  Does 

NOT include Regulatory Agency 

Correspondence) 

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 2 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 2 

years

  Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-4

Office of 

Record

Retention 

No.
Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR) or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Dept. that 

Authors 

Document 

or 

Receives 

the District's 

Original 

Document

DW-017

Correspondence - 

TRANSITORY / PRELIMINARY 

DRAFTS, Interagency and 

Intraagency Memoranda not 

retained in the ordinary course 

of business 

Content NOT Substantive, or 

NOT made or retained for the 

purpose of preserving the 

informational content for 

future reference

(e.g. calendars, checklists, e-mail 

or social media posting, instant 

messaging, inventories,  invitations, 

logs, mailing lists, meeting room 

registrations, speaker slips, supply 

inventories, telephone messages, 

text messages. transmittal letters, 

thank yous, requests from other 

cities, undeliverable envelopes, 

visitors logs, voice mails, 

webpages, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag, Ppr

Electronic and paper records are 

categorized, filed and  retained 

based upon the CONTENT of 

the record.  Records where 

either the Content relates in a 

substantive way to the conduct 

of the public's business, or that 

ARE  made or retained for the 

purpose of preserving the 

informational content for future 

reference are saved by placing 

them in an electronic or paper 

(project) file folder and retained 

for the applicable retention 

period, If not mentioned here, 

consult the District's Legal 

Counsel to determine if a record 

is considered transitory / 

preliminary draft.  GC §§60201, 

6252, 6254(a); 64 Ops. Cal. 

Atty. Gen.  317 (1981); District of 

San Jose v. Superior Court 

(Smith). S218066. Supreme 

Court of California, 2017

Lead Dept. DW-018
Credit Card Slips (Signed by 

Employees)
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

For auditing purposes; GC 

§60201 et seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-5

Office of 

Record

Retention 

No.
Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR) or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-019
Drafts & Notes:  Drafts that are 

revised (retain final version) 

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag, Ppr

As long as the drafts and notes 

are not retained in the "Regular 

Course of Business".   GC 

§60201, GC §6254

Lead Dept. DW-020

Grants (SUCCESSFUL - all 

records, including FEMA 

claims, OES Claims)  

2 years

After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

Required - 

Minimum 5 

years

After Funding 

Agency Audit, 

if required - 

Minimum 5 

years

  Mag, Ppr

District Preference (may include 

records pertaining to 

independent contractor's 

compensation, or expense 

reimbursement); Meets auditing 

standards; Uniform Admin. 

Requirements for Grants to 

Local Governments is 3 years 

from expenditure report or final 

payment of grantee or 

subgrantee; 2 CFR 200.333;221 

CFR 1403.36 & 1403.42(b); 24 

CFR 85.42, 91.105(h), 92.505, 

570.490, & 570.502(a&b), 28 

CFR 66.42; 29 CFR 97.42; 40 

CFR 31.42; 44 CFR 13.42; 45 

CFR 92.42; OMB Circular A-110 

& A-133; GC §60201; GC 

§8546.7 

Lead Dept. DW-021

Grants:  UNSUCCESSFUL 

(Applications, Correspondence, 

etc.)

2 years 2 years   Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-6

Office of 

Record

Retention 

No.
Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR) or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-022

Index to Inactive Records / 

Records Stored in Records 

Center / Inventory of Records in 

Records Center

Indefinite Indefinite Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

DW-023
Invoices - see Accounts 

Payable
Mag, Ppr

District 

Secretary
DW-024 Ordinances

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Personnel 

Services
DW-025

Personnel Files - Department-

level Supervisor's Notes

After 

Performance 

Evaluation or 

Documented 

Discipline

After 

Performance 

Evaluation or 

Documented 

Discipline

Before 

Separation
Mag, Ppr

Preliminary Drafts; Supervisors 

notes should maintained in a 

separate folder and be 

incorporated in the employee's 

annual performance review; 29 

CFR 1602.31 & 1627.3(b)(ii), 8  

CCR §3204(d)(1) et seq., GC 

§§12946, 60201

Lead Dept. DW-026 Photographs

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag, Ppr GC §60201

DW-027
Policies & Procedures - See 

Reference Manuals
  Mag, Ppr

Lead Dept. DW-028
Public Relations / Press 

Releases

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DW-029 Records Destruction Lists

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr Copies; GC §60200

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-7

Office of 

Record

Retention 

No.
Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR) or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Authoring 

Dept.
DW-030

Reference Materials: Policies, 

Procedures, Brochures, 

Manuals, Newsletters

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag, Ppr

Documents of historical 

significance should be retained 

longer; GC §60201

Lead Dept. DW-031

Reports and Studies - White 

Papers, Issue Papers, Position 

Papers, Scientific Studies 

(other than Annual Reports)

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
  Mag, Ppr GC §60201

District 

Secretary
DW-032 Resolutions 

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes, 

depending 

upon 

subject

Mag, Ppr copies; GC §60200

Lead Dept. DW-033

Surveys / Questionnaires (that 

the District issues).  If a 

summary of the data is 

compiled, the survey forms are 

considered a draft or transitory 

record, and can be destroyed 

when no longer required.

2 years 2 years   Mag, Ppr GC §§60200, 60201

Finance / 

Payroll
DW-034 Time Cards / Time Sheets

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag, Ppr GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   ENGINEERING Page ENG-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)

Active          

(Guideline  - 

in office)

Inactive    

(Guideline  - 

Filed, OD or 

Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

ENGINEERING

Engineering EN-001 Aerials 2 years P P   

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Engineering EN-002
Annexations / Boundary Changes

Index, Maps, Documents
P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

QC & OD
GC §60201 et seq.

Engineering EN-003

Comment Letters:  No Comment, 

Non-Interference Letters to City or 

County for their proposed projects

20 years 20 years Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. EN-004
Correspondence with Regulatory 

Agencies

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 

10 years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 

10 years

Yes:  While 

Active 

Issues

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

District preference; some 

correspondence from 

Regulatory Agencies need to 

be retained for long periods of 

time; GC §60201

Engineering EN-005
Easements, Rights of Way, & 

Recorded Grant Deeds
While active P P

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S No
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Engineering EN-006 Inspection Reports While active P P

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Engineering EN-007

Plans, Reports & Studies 

(EIRs, Fishery Reports, 

Groundwater Management Plan, 

Groundwater Quality, Surface Water 

Quality, etc.)

2 years P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Engineering EN-008

Projects (CIP or Private 

Development):   Large Format 

Drawings

Design Drawings (finals), Record 

Drawings ("As Builts")

Upon 

Completion
P P

Yes:  Until 

Completed

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S No

For Disaster Recovery 

Purposes; Final environmental 

determinations are required to 

be kept a "reasonable period of 

time"; 14 CCR §15095(c); GC 

§60201 et seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   ENGINEERING Page ENG-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)

Active          

(Guideline  - 

in office)

Inactive    

(Guideline  - 

Filed, OD or 

Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

 

Engineering
EN-009

Projects (CIP or Private 

Development):   Permanent File / 

Permits

Agreements / Contracts (copies), Bid 

Package (Winning), Change Orders, 

Environmental, Final As-Built Drawings 

(Record Drawings), Inspection Pictures, 

Inspection Reports, Material Testing, 

Operations & Maintenance Manuals, 

Permits (Design, Environmental), 

Preliminary Design Report, Rights of 

Way / Easements, Soils, Geotechnical 

Reports, Specifications, Submittals, 

Surveys, CAD files, Engineer's 

Calculation Files

Upon 

Completion
P P

Yes:  Until 

Completed

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD, 

except for 

Easements 

& As-Builts

Department preference; 

retained for disaster 

preparedness purposes;  

Statewide guidelines propose 

Permanent for Infrastructure 

plans; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   ENGINEERING Page ENG-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)

Active          

(Guideline  - 

in office)

Inactive    

(Guideline  - 

Filed, OD or 

Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

 

Engineering
EN-010

Projects (CIP or Private 

Development):  Administration - 10 

year file

Project Administration, Bid Summary, 

Bonds, Certified Payroll, Grant 

Documents, Errors & Omissions, 

Insurance Certificates, Notifications, 

Progress Payments, Punch Lists, Videos 

Post-Construction & Pre-Construction, 

Bid Bonds (returned), Bond Copies of 

Drawings, Correspondence (Transitory / 

Preliminary Drafts), Engineer's 

Estimates, Memoranda, NPDES, Permits 

(Construction & Street Opening), Project 

Schedules, Requests for Information, 

Stop Notices - Claims, CCTV

Upon 

Completion

10 years or 

After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required, 

whichever is 

longer

Completion 

+ 10 years 

or After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required, 

whichever is 

longer

Yes:  Until 

Completed
Mag, Ppr

Some grant funding agencies 

require audits; Statute of 

Limitations for Errors & 

Omissions is 10 years; 

Published Audit Standards=4-7 

years; Statute of Limitations: 

Contracts & Spec's=4 years, 

Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 

years, Developers=comp. + 10 

years; Statewide guidelines 

propose termination + 5 years; 

CCP §337 et. seq., GC §60201

Engineering EN-011

Projects (CIP or Private 

Development): Unsuccessful 

Proposals

20 years 20 years
Yes:  Until 

Completed

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC
GC §60201 et seq.

District 

Secretary
EN-012

Real Estate Acquisition or Sale:  

Deeds, Easements, Rights of Way, 

etc.

P P

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I No
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   ENGINEERING Page ENG-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)

Active          

(Guideline  - 

in office)

Inactive    

(Guideline  - 

Filed, OD or 

Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Engineering EN-013
Real Estate Appraisal Reports ALL 

(Whether Purchased or Not)

Minimum 5 

years

Minimum 5 

years

Yes:  Before 

Purchase
Mag, Ppr

Department preference (not 

accessible to the public until 

close of escrow); USPAP 

(Uniform Standards of 

Professional Appraisal 

Practice) ethical standards 

require appraisers to retain 

records for at least 5 years, or 

final disposition + 2 years, if 

used in a judicial proceeding; 

GC §§60201, 6254(h)

Engineering EN-014
Sewer Improvement Districts / 

Assessment Districts / CFDs

Upon 

Completion
P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD
GC §60201 et seq.

Engineering EN-015
Studies / Technical Studies / Meter 

Replacement Advance Studies
5 years P

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Engineering EN-016

Tracts / Subdivisions / Parcel Maps / 

Tentative Tracts (may contain 

drawings of our easements)

Upon 

Completion
P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference (Tracts 

maintained by appropriate 

County and/or City); GC 

§60201

Engineering EN-017 Wastewater Special Studies

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 

10 years

When No 

Longer 

Required -

Minimum 

10 years

Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference to 

comply with NPDES 

regulations; 40 CFR §§122.21, 

122.41; GC §60201 et seq.

Engineering EN-018 Water Master Plans 2 years P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference 

(updated every 5 years); GC 

§60201 et seq.

Engineering EN-019 Well Extraction Verifications 2 years P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC

Department preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   ENGINEERING Page ENG-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)

Active          

(Guideline  - 

in office)

Inactive    

(Guideline  - 

Filed, OD or 

Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Engineering EN-020
Will-Serve Letters / Availability 

Letters
2 years P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

PERMITS

Engineering 

/ Permits
EN-021 Construction Permits

Upon 

Completion
P P

Yes:  Until 

Completed

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

For disaster preparedness 

purposes; GC §60201 et seq.

Engineering 

/ Permits
EN-022

Customer Service / Changes to 

System or Meters / Mechanical 

Meters - ALL FINAL RECORDS 

Upon 

Completion
P P

Yes:  Until 

Completed

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

For disaster preparedness 

purposes; GC §60201 et seq.

Engineering 

/ Permits
EN-023

Customer Service / Permit 

Database 
Indefinite Indefinite Mag

Data is interrelated; system 

qualifies as a "trusted system"; 

GC §§60201, 12168.7

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

FINANCE ADMINISTRATION / GENERAL ACCOUNTING

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-001
Audit Annual Reports / Audited 

Financial Statements / Audit Reports
5 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S/ I

Yes:  After 

Annual 

Audit

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-002 Audits - Single Audits 2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-003

Bank Statements / Checking Account 

Reconciliation / Fiscal Agent 

Statements, Trustee Statements, 

Investment Account Statements, etc.

2 years 3 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-004 Bond Registers 2 years

Fully 

Defeased + 

10 years

Fully 

Defeased

+ 10 years

Yes:  Until 

Maturity

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Statute of Limitations for bonds, 

mortgages, trust deeds, notes or 

debentures is 6 years; Bonds 

issued by local governments are 

10 years; There are specific 

requirements for disposal of 

unused bonds; CCP §§336 et 

seq., 337.5(a); 26 CFR 1.6001-

1(e): GC §43900 et seq.

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-005
Bonds / Certificates of Participation / 

Transcripts / Disclosure Reports
2 years

Fully 

Defeased + 

10 years

Fully 

Defeased

+ 10 years

Yes:  Until 

Maturity

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department Preference; Statute 

of Limitations for bonds, 

mortgages, trust deeds, notes or 

debentures is 6 years; Bonds 

issued by local governments are 

10 years; There are specific 

requirements for disposal of 

unused bonds; CCP §§336(a)(1) 

& (2), 337.5(2); GC §43900 et 

seq. GC §60201 et seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-006 Bonds Issue Records 2 years

Fully 

Defeased + 

10 years

Fully 

Defeased

+ 10 years

Yes:  Until 

Maturity

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department Preference; Statute 

of Limitations for bonds, 

mortgages, trust deeds, notes or 

debentures is 6 years; Bonds 

issued by local governments are 

10 years; There are specific 

requirements for disposal of 

unused bonds; CCP §§336(a)(1) 

& (2), 337.5(2); GC §43900 et 

seq. GC §60201 et seq.

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-007 Budgets:  Adopted 5 years P P

Yes:  

Current 

Fiscal Year

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S/ I

Yes:  After 

Annual 

Audit

Department Preference; GC 

§60200

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-008
Budgets:  Proposed, Work Papers, 

Drafts, etc.

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; 

Preliminary drafts; GC §60200

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-009 Cash Drawer Reconciliation 2 years 3 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-010

Financial Reports:  Journals, 

Ledgers, Reconciliations, Registers, 

Reports, Transaction Histories, 

Balance Sheets, Budget 

Adjustments, Billing Registers for 

New Financial System, Edit Lists, 

(MONTHLY OR PERIODIC)  Does 

NOT include year-end General 

Ledger.

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Draft / Preliminary documents 

used to produce final year-end 

general ledger (financial database 

is the original); GC §60201

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-011
Financial System Database / ERP 

Database
Indefinite Indefinite Mag

Data is interrelated; system 

qualifies as a "trusted system"; 

GC §§60201, 12168.7

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-012
Fixed Assets - Auction / Disposal / 

Sales / Surplused
2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Consistent with Accounts 

Receivable;  Statute of limitations 

is 3 years; statewide guidelines 

propose 2 - 4 years; published 

articles show 3 - 6 years; GC 

§60201, CCP §337

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-013
Fund Transfers / Wire Transfers / 

Adjustments
2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-014 Inventory Reports

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Preliminary drafts (the Financial 

Database is the original); GC 

§60200

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-015

Investment Files / Portfolio Manager 

Statements / Cal Trust / LAIF (Local 

Agency Investment Fund)

2 years 3 years 5 years
Yes:  Until 

Maturity
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-016 Journal Vouchers / Journal Entries 2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Statute 

of Limitations is 4 years; 

Published articles show 6-7 

years; GC §60201, CCP §337

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-017 Loans to the District - USDA, etc.
Loan Payoff 

+  5 years

Loan Payoff 

+ 5 years
  Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

General 

Accounting

FN-018

State Reports:  State Controllers 

Report / Local Government 

Compensation Report,  Public Self 

Insurer Report (SIP Report), etc.

2 years 3 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr
District Preference; Meets 

auditing standards; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FN-019 1099's 1096’s, W-9s 2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

IRS: 4 years after tax is due or 

paid  (longer for auditing & 

contractor delinquency); Ca. FTB: 

3 years; Published articles show 

permanent; ;  IRS Reg §31.6001-

1(e)(2),  R&T §19530, GC 

§60201(d)(12)

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FN-020

Accounts Payable Source Records / 

Invoices & Receivers / Credit Card 

Statements 

ALL

2 years 5 years 7 years
Yes:  Until 

Paid
Mag, Ppr

Meets municipal government 

auditing standards; Sewage 

Sludge is required for 5 years; 

Published articles show 3 - 7 

years; 40  CFR 122.41(j)(2); WC 

§13263.2(b) et seq.; GC 

§60201(d)(12)

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FN-021 Check Copies / Cancelled Checks 2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

May contain independent 

contractor's compensation; 

Statute of Limitations is 4 years; 

Meets municipal government 

auditing standards; GC 

§60201(d)(12), CCP § 337

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FN-022 Check Register 

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

The Financial Database is the 

original; Reports can be recreated 

on demand and are considered a 

copy or preliminary draft; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FN-023 Customer Refunds & Backup 2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

District preference for drinking 

water regulations; CCP §§338 et 

seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§§945.6, GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE / CUSTOMER SERVICE

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-024 Assessor Tax Roll (unpaid balances) 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards); GC §60201 et seq.

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-025
Bankruptcies (Where District does 

NOT pursue a claim)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-026
Bankruptcies (Where District DOES 

pursue a claim)
10 years 10 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-027

Checks deposited to Bank (District 

scans them for the Bank, rather than 

physically taking the checks to the 

bank to deposit them.)

Follow Bank 

Instructions

Follow Bank 

Instructions
Mag, Ppr

These are bank instruments, and 

not District records; per bank 

agreement.

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-028
Customer Correspondence, Appeals, 

etc. (letters from and to customers)
2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference (Clean 

Water Act actions are 5 years); 

GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-029
Customer Invoices / Customer Billing 

Database
Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag, Ppr

Data Fields / Records are 

interrelated; GC §60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-030
Direct Payment Applications / copies 

of voided checks
2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-031 Liens 10 years 10 years Mag, Ppr
Liens are good for 10 years from 

recording date, and may be 

extended by re-recording lien; 

WC 36729; 37212(b), 

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-032

Payment Coupons  Stubs (mailed) / 

Utility Receipts (when payment is 

made at the counter)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 

Transitory records not retained in 

the ordinary course of business; 

GC §60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-033 Relief Letters / Fines / Adjustment 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards); GC §60201 et seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-7

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-034 Returned Checks (NSF, etc.) 5 years 5 years
Yes:  Until 

Paid
Mag, Ppr

Meets municipal government 

auditing standards; Statewide 

guidelines propose audit + 4 

years;  GC §60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-034.1

Water Billing:  Appeals - Payment 

Delinquency & Impending 

Discontinuation

Final 

Decision + 2 

years

Final 

Decision + 2 

years

Mag, 

Ppr, Mfr, 

OD

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Documented or attached to 

Customer Record in database GC 

§60201; H&S §116908

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-034.2

Water Billing:  Non-payment Notices / 

Notice of Payment Delinquency & 

Impending Discontinuation (Initial, 

Final)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, 

Ppr, Mfr, 

OD

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Documented or attached to 

Customer Record in database GC 

§60201; H&S §116908

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-034.3
Water Billing:  NSF Checks / 

Adjustments to Customer accounts

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, 

Ppr, Mfr, 

OD

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Documented or attached to 

Customer Record in database GC 

§60201; H&S §116908

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-034.4

Water Billing:  Payment Plans:  

Amortization, Alternative Payment 

Plans, Deferrals, etc.

Expiration or 

Completion 

of Payment 

Plan

Expiration or 

Completion 

of Payment 

Plan

Mag, 

Ppr, Mfr, 

OD

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Documented or attached to 

Customer Record in database GC 

§60201; H&S §116910

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-8

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-034.5

Water Billing:  Policy on 

Discontinuation of Residential 

Service for Nonpayment

When 

Superseded - 

Minimum 2 

years

When 

Superseded; 

Minimum 2 

years

Mag, 

Ppr, Mfr, 

OD

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Must post to Website; H&S 

§116906; GC §60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Receivable 

& Customer 

Service

FN-034.6

Water Billing:  Report of Annual 

Discontinuations of Residential 

Service

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years

Mag, 

Ppr, Mfr, 

OD

S
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Must post to Website; H&S 

§116918; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-9

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CASH MANAGEMENT

Finance / 

Cash 

Manag.

FN -035 Bank Deposit Receipts 2 years 3 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

Cash 

Manag.

FN -036 Bank Signature Cards
Superseded 

+ 5 years

Superseded 

+ 5 years
  Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

Cash 

Manag.

FN -037 Cash Receipts 2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards;  GC §60201

Finance / 

Cash 

Manag.

FN -038 Customer Deposits 2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

District preference for drinking 

water regulations; CCP §§338 et 

seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§§945.6, GC §60201

PAYROLL

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -039

1095-C, 1094-C (Employer-Provided 

Health Insurance Offer and Coverage 

& Transmittal Form) 

4 years 4 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; 

Instructions state "Generally, 

keep copies of information returns 

you filed with the IRS or have the 

ability to reconstruct the data for 

at least 3 years, from the due 

date of the returns"  IRS: 4 years 

after tax is due or paid; 6 CFR 

31.6001-1(e)(2) GC §60201

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -040 Billing:  COBRA and Retiree Medical 

Termination 

of Service
7 years

Termination 

of Service + 

7 years

Yes:  During 

Service 
Mag, Ppr

Retained to cover auditing 

standards; General rule under 

ERISA (Employee Retirement 

Income Security Act) is 7 years; 

29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); 29 USC 

1027; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-10

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -041

Cancelled Payroll Checks, Including 

Voided copies for Automatic Deposits
2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201(d)(12), CCP § 337

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -042

DE-6 & 941 Forms DE-6 & 941 

Forms, DE-7, DE-9 DE-43, W-3, & 

DE-166, IRS 5500 Forms (Employee 

Benefit Plans) - Quarterly Payroll Tax 

Returns

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; IRS: 4 

years after tax is due or paid  

(longer for auditing & contractor 

delinquency); Ca. FTB: 3 years; 

Published articles show 

permanent; ;  IRS Reg §31.6001-

1(e)(2), 26 CFR §1.6001-1,  R&T 

§19530, GC §60201

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -043

Employee Payroll File

Includes automatic payroll deposit 

authorizations, education loans, 

deductions, voluntary deductions, etc.

 Separation 

+ 1 year
2 years

 Separation 

+ 3 years
Mag, Ppr

Department preference;  FLSA 

requires 3 years; 29 CFR 516;  

GC §60201 et seq.

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -044 Garnishments

 Fully 

Satisfied or 

Separated + 

2 years

 Fully 

Satisfied or 

Separated + 

2 years

Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -045

Loans to Employees - Housing 

Assistance, Down payment 

Assistance

Loan Payoff 

+  5 years

Loan Payoff 

+ 5 years
  Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -046 Payroll Checks 2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201(d)(12), CCP § 337

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -047

Payroll Registers 
Includes Deferred Compensation Reports, 

PERS reports, 401A, etc.

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Department preference (The 

software can accurately 

reproduce reports); GC 

§60201(d)(12)

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -048

Reports:  Vacation / Sick Leave 

Usage

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Draft / Preliminary documents 

(financial database is the 

original); GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-11

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -049 Timesheets / Timecards 2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

GC §60201(d)(12); 29 CFR 516.5 

& 516.6(c); IRS Reg §31.6001-

1(e)(2), R&T §19530; LC § 

1174(d)

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -050 W-2's 2 years 5 years 7 years

Mag, OD, 

Mfr, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

Annual 

Audit

Department preference; IRS: 4 

yrs after tax is due or paid; Ca. 

FTB: 3 years; Articles show 7 

years; IRS Reg §31.6001-1(e)(2), 

R&T §19530; 29CFR 516.5 - 

516.6, 29USC 436, GC 

§60201(d)(12)

Finance / 

Payroll
FN -051 W-4's 

No Longer in 

Effect + 4 

years

No Longer in 

Effect + 4 

years

Mag, OD, 

Mfr, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

Annual 

Audit

IRS Regulation 31-6001-1 four 

years after the due date of such 

tax for the return period to which 

the records relate, or the date 

such tax is paid, whichever is the 

later. GC §34090; 26 CFR 

31.6001-1; GC §60201(d)(12)

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-12

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

OD'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

PURCHASING

Finance / 

Purchasing
FN-052 Purchase Orders 

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference (software 

can accurately re-create 

Purchase Order); GC §60201

Maint. FN-053 Used Oil Disposal 3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

22 CCR 66266.130(c)(5), H&S 

§25250.18(b), 25250.19(a)(3) et 

seq.

Finance / 

Purchasing
FN-054

Vehicle and Equipment Folders (for 

Service provided by contractors / 

outside vendors, Smog Certificates, 

etc.)

Disposal of 

Vehicle or 

Equipment + 

2 years

Disposal of 

Vehicle or 

Equipment + 

2 years

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; If a 

motor carrier, required for 18 

months after vehicle is sold; CHP 

requires life of vehicle; OSHA 

requires 1 year; 8 CCR § 

3203(b)(1); 49 CFR 396.21(b)(1); 

49 CFR 396.3(c); CCP §337 et. 

seq., 13 CCR 1234(f);  GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Purchasing 
FN-055 Vehicle Titles (Pink Slips)

Upon Sale of 

the Vehicle

Upon Sale of 

the Vehicle
Yes Mag, Ppr

Given to the new owner upon sale 

of the vehicle; GC §60201 et seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   GENERAL MANAGER & DISTRICT SECRETARY Page GM/DS-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

ADMINISTRATION / GENERAL MANAGER / PUBLIC RELATIONS

General 

Manager
GM-001

Projects, Programs, Subject & 

Issues (Issues and/or projects will 

vary over time)

When No 

Longer 

Required 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

General 

Manager
GM-002

Public Relations / Press 

Releases

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

General 

Manager
GM-003

Speech Notes / PowerPoint 

Presentations

When No 

Longer 

Required 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Notes, drafts, or preliminary 

documents; GC §60201 et 

seq.

DISTRICT SECRETARY

District 

Secretary
DS-001

Agendas & Agenda Packets -  

Board of Directors, 

Subcommittees (Technical 

Services, Finance)

2 years P P

Yes:  Before 

Meeting 

Date

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After  

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-002

Agreements & Contracts -  

INFRASTRUCTURE - 

Engineering, JPAs, etc.

Agreement or Contract, 

Insurance Certificates, 

Amendments

Examples of Infrastructure:  

Architects, Treatment Plants, Lines, 

Buildings, etc.

Completion P P
Yes:  Before 

Completion

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC

Department Preference; All 

infrastructure, JPAs, & 

Mutual Aid contracts are 

permanent for emergency 

preparedness; Statute of 

Limitations is 4 years; 10 

years for Errors & 

Omissions; CCP §§337. 

337.1(a), 337.15, 343; GC 

§60201 et seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   GENERAL MANAGER & DISTRICT SECRETARY Page GM/DS-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

District 

Secretary
DS-003

Agreements & Contracts -  NON 

INFRASTRUCTURE - 

Administration & Operations - 

Equipment Purchases, 

Consulting Services, Leases, 

Vehicle Purchases, etc.  

Agreement or Contract, 

Insurance Certificates, 

Amendments

Examples of Non-Infrastructure:  

Consultants, Painting, Maintenance, 

Franchise Agreements, etc.

Completion 10 years 
Completion 

+ 10 years

Yes:  Before 

Completion

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC

Department Preference; 

Covers E&O Statute of 

Limitations; Published Audit 

Standards=4-7 years; 

Statute of Limitations: 

Contracts & Spec's=4 years, 

Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 

years, Developers=comp. + 

10 years; Statewide 

guidelines propose 

termination + 5 years; CCP 

§§336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 

§60201 et seq.

District 

Secretary
DS-004

Agreements & Contracts:  

Political & Outside 

Jurisdictions

Conjunctive Agreements, 

Cooperative Agreements, JPAs 

(Joint Powers Authorities), Water 

2 years P P
Yes:  Before 

Superseded

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-005

Appointments / Resignations to 

the Board of Directors
2 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After  

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-006

Association Records (external 

associations - e.g., ACWA, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr
Non-records; GC §60201 et 

seq.

District 

Secretary
DS-007

District Formation Records, 

Acquisition of other Districts
2 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department preference 

(historical purposes); GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   GENERAL MANAGER & DISTRICT SECRETARY Page GM/DS-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

District 

Secretary
DS-008

Elections - Historical (Sample 

Ballot, Election Results)
2 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference 

(historical purposes); GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-009

Elections:  Correspondence, 

Notifications & Publications, 

Certificate of Election, etc.

2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference 

(historical purposes); GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-010

FPPC 700 Series Forms 

(Statement of Economic 

Interests):  DESIGNATED 

EMPLOYEES & CONSULTANTS 

(specified in the District's Conflict 

of Interest code)

10 years 10 years
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Statements filed 

electronically are required 

for 10 years; GC 

§81009(f)(g); GC §84615

District 

Secretary
DS-011

FPPC 700 Series Forms 

(Statement of Economic 

Interests):  PUBLIC OFFICIALS 

(elected & not elected.  Includes 

District Board Members, General 

Manager)

10 years 10 years
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Statements filed 

electronically are required 

for 10 years; GC 

§81009(f)(g); GC §84615

District 

Secretary
DS-012

FPPC Form 801 (Gift to Agency 

Report) 
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Must post on website; 2 

CCR 18944(c)(3)(G); GC 

§81009(e)

District 

Secretary
DS-013

FPPC Form 802 (Tickets 

Provided by Agency Report)
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Must post on website for 4 

years; GC §81009€

District 

Secretary
DS-014

FPPC Form 803 (Behested 

Payment Report)
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr GC §81009e

District 

Secretary
DS-015

FPPC Form 804 (Agenda Report 

of New Positions)
P P Mag, Ppr

FPPC Regulation 18734(c); 

GC §81009e; GC §60201 

District 

Secretary
DS-016

FPPC Form 805 (Agency Report 

of Consultants)
P P Mag, Ppr

FPPC Regulation 18734(c); 

GC §81009e; GC §60201 

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   GENERAL MANAGER & DISTRICT SECRETARY Page GM/DS-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

District 

Secretary
DS-017

FPPC Form 806 (Agency Report 

of Public Official Appointments)
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Must post on website; 2 

CCR 18705.5(b)(3); GC 

§60201,  81009e

District 

Secretary
DS-018 Historical Records 2 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

District Secretary 

Determines Historical 

Significance; GC §60201

District 

Secretary
DS-019

Minutes:  Board of Directors, 

Subcommittees (Technical 

Services, Finance)

2 years P P Yes (all)
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No GC §60201(d)(3)

District 

Secretary
DS-020

Notices:  Affidavits of Postings 

and Publications
2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Brown Act challenges must 

be filed within 30 or 90 days 

of action; GC §§60201, 

54960.1(c)(1)

District 

Secretary
DS-021

Oaths of Office (Board of 

Directors Only)
2 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-022 Ordinances 2 years P P Yes (all)

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No GC §60201 et. seq.

District 

Secretary
DS-023

Organization Charts - In Agenda 

Packets
5 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S/ I

Yes:  After 

Annual 

Audit

GC §60201  et seq.

District 

Secretary
DS-024 Proclamations 2 years 2 years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC'd & OD
GC §60201

District 

Secretary
DS-025 Public Records Act Requests 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-026

Records Destruction 

Authorization Forms
10 years 10 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

District 

Secretary
DS-027 Resolutions 2 years P P Yes (all)

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No GC §60201 et. seq.

District 

Secretary
DS-028

Secretary of State Statement of 

Facts
2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201 et. seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   GENERAL MANAGER & DISTRICT SECRETARY Page GM/DS-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

District 

Secretary
DS-029 Subpoenas 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201(d)(5)

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Page IT-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Information 

Technology
IT-001 Backups -   DAILY 

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required 

Yes Mag.

Used for Disaster Recovery 

Purposes Only; Considered a 

copy and can be destroyed 

when no longer required; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Information 

Technology
IT-002 Backups - WEEKLY 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

Yes Mag.

Used for Disaster Recovery 

Purposes Only; Store off-site 

in commercial storage for 

disaster recovery; Considered 

a copy and can be destroyed 

when no longer required; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Information 

Technology
IT-003

GIS Database / Geographic 

Information Database
Indefinite Indefinite Mag

Data is interrelated; GC 

§§60201, 12168.7

Information 

Technology
IT-004

Network Configuration Maps & 

Plans

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag.

Preliminary documents not 

retained in the ordinary 

course of business; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Information 

Technology
IT-005

UNALTERABLE MEDIA 

(WORM / DVD-r / CD-r / Blue 

Ray-R) or other unalterable 

media that does not permit 

additions, deletions, or 

changes

P P OD

For legal compliance for 

Trustworthy Electronic 

Records (when the electronic 

record serves as the official 

record); GC 60201, 12168.7, 

EVC 1550, CCR 22620 et 

seq.

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT, CA.  ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   MAINTENANCE Page MNT-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

MAINTENANCE

Maint. MNT-001

Aboveground Storage Tanks 

(Agency Owned - Water Storage 

Tanks)
Spill Prevention Control and 

Countermeasures (SPCC), 

Inspections, Integrity Testing, 

Maintenance, Repairs

20 years P P Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; applies 

to both Tier I and Tier II Tanks; 

(Tier II tanks are required to 

have an integrity test every 20 

years); GC §60201

Maint. & 

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

MNT-002
Asbestos Disposal - Chain of 

Custody
2 years P P   

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

QC'd

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Maint. MNT-003
Backflow Testing / Cross 

Connection 
3 years 2 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

California Department of Health 

requirements; GC §60201; 17 

CCR 7605(f)

Maint. MNT-004 CCTV - Sewers
Minimum 5 

years

Minimum 5 

years
Mag

Department preference; GC 

§60201

 Operations 

or Maint.
MNT-005

Confined Space Entries / Hot 

Work Permits

(Permitted entries into confined 

spaces such as sewers and storm 

drains in order to comply with 

regulations)

2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr
8 CCR 5157(d)(14) & (e)(6); 29 

CFR 1919.146(e)(6)  GC §60201 

Lead Dept. MNT-006

Daily Safety Checks / Pre-Starts / 

Commercial Vehicle Prestarts and 

Forklift Inspections

1 year 1 year Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 13 CCR 

1234(e); 49 CFR 396.11(c)(2); 

49 CFR 396.21(b)(1); GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   MAINTENANCE Page MNT-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Operations / 

Wastewater
MNT-007

Emergency Call Out Logs / Storm 

Call Out Logs 
5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department preference (used for 

FEMA / OES reimbursements); 

GC §60201

Maint. MNT-008

Encroachment Permits  (for 

Maintenance Work: Road / Street 

Cuts, etc.)

Upon 

Expiration

Upon 

Expiration
Mag, Ppr

Issued by other agencies for our 

work; GC §60201

Lead Dept. MNT-009 Flow Meter Reading 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Maint. MNT-010

Generator Operation Logs & 

Inspections - Fixed / Stationary 

Generators 

3 years 3 years   Mag, Ppr AQMD Rule 1470; GC §60201

Maint. MNT-011

Generator Operation Logs & 

Inspections - Portable / 

Emergency Generators

5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

AQMD Rule 1470;  Form 

400–E–13a instructions; GC 

§60201

Maint. & 

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

MNT-012
Hazardous Waste Manifests / 

Disposal 
5 years P P

Yes:  

Before 

Resolution

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S
Yes: After 

QC'd

Department preference (District 

has "cradle to grave" liability); 

only 3 years is mandated; 22 

CCR 66262.40; GC §60201

Maint. MNT-013

Hydrant Maintenance Logs / 

Exercises and Flushes (prior to 

CMMS)

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Maint. MNT-014

Incidents / Unauthorized 

Discharges:  Main Breaks, Spills, 

Investigations and Corrective 

Actions, Notice to Comply - ALL

Last Action 

+ 5 years

Last Action 

+ 5 years

Yes:  

Before 

Resolution

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Code of 

Federal Regulations requires 3 

years; 40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) & 40 

CFR 141.33(b)(2); 22 CCR 

§64470

Maint. MNT-015 Leak Reports 5 years ` 5 years Mag, Ppr

5 years is required in State and 

Federal law for any complaints; 

40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) & 40 CFR 

141.33(b); 22 CCR 64470

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   MAINTENANCE Page MNT-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Maint. MNT-016
Meter Calibration Records 

(Production Meters)
2 years 10 years 12 years Mag, Ppr

Consistent with Lead & Copper 

Analysis; 40 CFR 141.33(a)

 Operations 

or Maint.
MNT-017

Operations & Maintenance 

Manuals (O&M Manuals)

Life of 

Facility or 

Equipment

Life of 

Facility or 

Equipment

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et. seq.

Maint. MNT-018
Pressure Tests (Potable Water 

System) / Boil Alerts
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Maint. MNT-019

Pre-Trip Inspections / DOT 

Program / CHP Inspections / 

Vehicle Safety Checks / Daily 

Vehicle Inspections / Daily 

Equipment Checks 

2 years 2 years Ppr GC §60201; 3 CCR 1234(3) 

Maint. MNT-020
Pump Tests / Meter Tests / 

Calibration

Upon 

Change of 

Pump or 

Meter

Upon 

Change of  

Pump or 

Meter

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Maint. MNT-021
Sanitary Spills and Overflows 

(SSOs)
5 years 5 years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

If treating water, required for 5 

years; 40 CFR 122.41(j)(2)

 Operations 

or Maint.
MNT-022

SCADA Alarm & Status Printouts / 

Charts

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Database is original, printouts 

are drafts / copies.  Data is 

interrelated; system qualifies as 

a "trusted system"; GC §§60200, 

12168.7

 Operations 

or Maint.
MNT-023

SCADA Database (Supervisory 

Control and Data Acquisition)
Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag

Data is interrelated; system 

qualifies as a "trusted system"; 

GC §§60201, 12168.7

Maint. MNT-024 Sewer Complaints (written) 2 years 2 years   Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   MAINTENANCE Page MNT-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Maint. MNT-025
Sewer System Management Plans 

(SSMP) and Audits
P P

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; plans 

must be updated every 5 years, 

audits are required every 2 

years; GC §60201

Maint. & 

Operations 
MNT-026

Two-Way Radio Licensing and 

Information

Expiration + 

2 years

Expiration + 

2 years

Yes:  Until 

Expired

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

QC'd

Covers statute of limitations for 

written contracts (4 years); 

Statewide guidelines propose 

Permanent; CCP  § 337 et. Seq.; 

GC § 60201

Maint. MNT-027
Underground Service Alerts 

(USA's) 
3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (required 

for 3 years); the warrantee 

period for work done is usually 5 

years, the Statute of Limitations 

for some work may be up to 10 

years; CCP §337 et seq., GC 

§§4216.2(d) & 4216.3(d), 60201

Maint. MNT-028

Vehicle & Equipment History Files 

(If Work is performed by 

Maintenance staff)

Disposal of 

Vehicle or 

Equipment + 

2 years

Disposal of 

Vehicle or 

Equipment + 

2 years

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; If a 

motor carrier, required for 18 

months after vehicle is sold; CHP 

requires life of vehicle; OSHA 

requires 1 year; 8 CCR § 

3203(b)(1); 49 CFR 396.21(b)(1); 

49 CFR 396.3(c); CCP §337 et. 

Seq., GC §60201

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

MNT-029

Work Orders / Service Requests   

CMMS DATABASE 

(Computerized Maintenance 

Management System)

Indefinite Indefinite   Mag Data is interrelated; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   MAINTENANCE Page MNT-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

MNT-030

Work Orders / Service Requests - 

All Information Entered in 

CMMS Database

(Paper drafts)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag Ppr
Preliminary drafts (the database 

is the original); GC §60201

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

MNT-031

Work Orders / Service Requests - 

NOT entered in CMMS Database 

(or partial information entered into 

CMMS Database)

(Division providing service retains 

originals; Division requesting 

service is considered a copy)

Minimum 5 

year

Minimum 5 

years
  Mag Ppr

District Preference; CCP §§338 

et seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   OPERATIONS Page OPS-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

OPERATIONS / LABORATORY

 Operations / 

Water 

Resources

OP-001
Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Groundwater

Minimum 5 

years

Minimum 5 

years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

 Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-002

Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Potable Water Bacteriological 

and Organics

Minimum 5 

years

Minimum 5 

years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

 Department Preference; 40 CFR 

141.33(a) and (b)(1); 22 CCR 

§64470

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-003

Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Potable Water Chemical 

(Includes Chlorine Residuals)

Minimum 10 

years

Minimum 10 

years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

Department preference; State 

law requires 12 years, Federal 

10 years; 40 CFR 141.33(a);  22 

CCR §64470

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-004

Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Potable Water Lead & Copper 

Minimum 12 

years

Minimum 12 

years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

Required for 12 years or 2 

compliance cycles; 40 CFR 

141.91

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-005

Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Recycled  Water

Minimum 5 

years

Minimum 5 

years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

 Department Preference; 40 CFR 

141.33(a) and (b)(1); 22 CCR 

§64470

 Operations / 

Water 

Resources

OP-006
Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Surface water

Minimum 5 

years

Minimum 5 

years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

 Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

SOLAR POWER

Operations / 

Solar Power 

Generation

OP-007
Solar Power Production Operating 

Data Logs / Diaries 
10 years 10 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   OPERATIONS Page OPS-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

WASTEWATER COLLECTION 

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-008

Confined Space Entries / Hot 

Work Permits

(Permitted entries into confined 

spaces such as sewers and storm 

drains in order to comply with 

regulations)

2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr
8 CCR 5157(d)(14) & (e)(6); 29 

CFR 1919.146(e)(6)  GC §60201 

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-009

Operations & Maintenance 

Manuals (O&M Manuals)

Life of 

Facility or 

Equipment

Life of 

Facility or 

Equipment

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et. seq.

Operations / 

Wastewater
OP-010

Reclaimed Water / Recycled 

Water
5 years 5 years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

 Department Preference (only 5 

years is required for reclaimed 

water; no requirement for salt 

water); 40 CFR 141.33(a) and 

(b)(1); 22 CCR §64470

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-011

SCADA Alarm & Status Printouts / 

Charts

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Database is original, printouts 

are drafts / copies.  Data is 

interrelated; system qualifies as 

a "trusted system"; GC §§60200, 

12168.7

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-012

SCADA Database (Supervisory 

Control and Data Acquisition)
Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag

Data is interrelated; system 

qualifies as a "trusted system"; 

GC §§60201, 12168.7

Operations / 

Wastewater
OP-013

Treatment Plant - Water Quality / 

Outfall Reports
P P

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S / I
Yes - After 

QC & OD

 Department Preference (only 5 

years is required); 40 CFR 

141.33(a) and (b)(1); 22 CCR 

§64470

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   OPERATIONS Page OPS-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

WATER DISTRIBUTION (DRINKING WATER / POTABLE WATER)

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-014

Confined Space Entries / Hot 

Work Permits

(Permitted entries into confined 

spaces such as sewers and storm 

drains in order to comply with 

regulations)

2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr
8 CCR 5157(d)(14) & (e)(6); 29 

CFR 1919.146(e)(6)  GC §60201 

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-015

Customer Concerns / Customer 

Complaints: Odor / Taste / Visual 

Complaints - Potable Water 

(Entered into CMMS)

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

5 years is required in State and 

Federal law for any complaints; 

40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) & 40 CFR 

141.33(b); 22 CCR 64470(a)

Lead Dept. OP-016

Daily Safety Checks / Pre-Starts / 

Commercial Vehicle Prestarts and 

Forklift Inspections

1 year 1 year Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 13 CCR 

1234(e); 49 CFR 396.11(c)(2); 

49 CFR 396.21(b)(1); GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. OP-017 Flow Meter Reading 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-018

Operations & Maintenance 

Manuals (O&M Manuals)

Life of 

Facility or 

Equipment

Life of 

Facility or 

Equipment

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et. seq.

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-019

SCADA Alarm & Status Printouts / 

Charts

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Database is original, printouts 

are drafts / copies.  Data is 

interrelated; system qualifies as 

a "trusted system"; GC §§60200, 

12168.7

 Operations 

or Maint.
OP-020

SCADA Database (Supervisory 

Control and Data Acquisition)
Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag, Ppr

Department preference; Data is 

interrelated; GC §§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 3.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   OPERATIONS Page OPS-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-021

Well Water Production Reports (to 

State DHS / DPH & DWR)
Life of Well Life of Well

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

QC'd

Department Preference; Meets 

California Department of Health 

requirements (3 years); GC 

§60201

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-022 Well Water Quality Reports Life of Well Life of Well Mag, Ppr

5 years is required in State and 

Federal law for any complaints; 

40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) & 40 CFR 

141.33(b); 22 CCR 64470

 Operations / 

Water Dist.
OP-023

Wells 

Depth to Water measurements, 

Sounding, Compiled Reports, etc.

P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC

Department preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

PERSONNEL SERVICES

Personnel 

Services
PER-001

Affirmative Action Complaints - 

Department of Fair Employment & 

Housing (DFEH) or Equal 

Opportunity Commission (EEOC)

Separation + 

10 years

Separation + 

10 years
Mag, Ppr

Department preference (same as 

the Personnel File); All State and 

Federal laws require retention until 

final disposition of formal 

complaint; State requires 2 years 

after action is taken; 2 CCR 

11013(c); GC §§12946, 60201

Personnel 

Services
PER-002

Applications for Employment / 

Recruitment Files:

Solicited (Not Hired)

(Includes Applications 

(Unsuccessful), Advertisements, 

Interview Notes, Job Brochures, Test 

Data, Rating Sheets, Questions, 

Eligibility Lists, Reference Checks, 

etc.)

1 year 

After Hiring 

Decision

2 years

3 years 

After Hiring 

Decision

Mag, Ppr

Department preference; EEOC / 

FLSA / ADEA (Age) requires 1-3 

years; State Law requires 2 - 3 

years; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1), 29 

CFR 1602.14 et seq ., 2 CCR 

11013(c); GC §§12946, 60201

Personnel 

Services
PER-003

Cal-OSHA Log 200, 300, 300A, 301, 

etc.
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Calif. 

Labor Division is required to keep 

their records 7 years; OSHA 

requires 5 years; State law 

requires 2 years; ; 8 CCR 

§3203(b)(1), 29 CFR 1904.33, 

OMB 1220-0029, 8 CCR 

14300.33;GC §60201 et seq.; LC 

§6429c 

Personnel 

Services
PER-004

Classification and Compensation 

Studies / Surveys / Salary Surveys

When No 

Longer 

Required 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Personnel 

Services
PER-005

District Benefit Contracts & Benefit 

Plans / Insurance Policies (Health, 

Dental, Deferred Compensation, 

Pension, etc.)

Plan 

Termination 

+ 1  year

1 year

Plan 

Termination 

+ 2 years

Mag, Ppr

EEOC / ADEA (Age) requires 1 

year after benefit plan termination; 

State Law requires 2 years after 

action; 9 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); 29 

USC 1027; 11 CCR 560; 28 CCR 

1300.85.1; GC §60201

Personnel 

Services
PER-006 DMV Pull Notices 

When 

Superseded, 

or Upon 

Separation

When 

Superseded, 

or Upon 

Separation

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§§60201, 60201 et seq.

Personnel 

Services
PER-007

Drug and Alcohol Testing / D.O.T 

files (ALL Files - Random, Post-

Accident & Reasonable Suspicion 

Tests, refusals, annual summaries, 

etc.)

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; D.O.T. 

Requires 5 years for positive tests, 

refusals, annual summaries, etc, 1 

year for negative tests; EEOC / 

FLSA / ADEA (Age) requires 3 

years physical examinations; State 

Law requires 2 years; 229 CFR 

1627.3(b)(1)(v), GC §§12946, 

60201, 49 CFR 655.71 et seq.; 49 

CFR 382.401 et seq.  49 CFR 

653.71

Personnel 

Services
PER-008 General Manager Contract Completion 10 years

Completion 

+ 10 years
  

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Also see Grants.  Covers E&O 

Statute of Limitations (insurance 

certificates are filed with 

agreement); Published Audit 

Standards=4-7 years; Statute of 

Limitations: Contracts & Spec's=4 

years, Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 

years, Developers must retain their 

records for completion + 10 years; 

CCP §§336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Personnel 

Services
PER-009 Grievances

 Separation 

+ 1 year
5 years

 Separation 

+ 6 years
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; 

EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 

3 years for promotion, demotion, 

transfer, selection, or discharge; 

State Law requires 2 -3 years; 229 

CFR 1602.31 & 1627.3(b)(1);, GC 

§§12946, 12960, 60201; 29 USC 

1113, LC 1174

Personnel 

Services
PER-010 I-9s

Separation + 

3 years

Separation + 

3 years
Mag Ppr

Non-citizens must re-certify 

periodically; Required for 1 year 

from termination or 3 years from 

hiring, whichever is later; EEOC / 

FLSA / ADEA (Age) requires 3 

years for "any other forms of 

employment inquiry"; State Law 

requires 2 -3 years; 8 CFR 274a.2; 

29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1); GC 

§§12946, 60201, 60201

Personnel 

Services
PER-011

Illness and Injury Prevention 

Program

Minimum of 

Superseded 

+ 2 years

Minimum of 

Superseded 

+ 2 years

  Mag, Ppr
Consistent with District-wide 

standards; GC §60201

Personnel 

Services
PER-012 Job Descriptions

Superseded 

+ 1 years
2 years

Superseded 

+ 3 years

Yes:  Before 

Superseded

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 

Personnel 

Services
PER-013

Personnel Files - Medical File

(Includes pre-employment physicals, 

hazmat exposure records, pulmonary 

tests, Class B medicals,  medical leaves, 

Respiratory Fit Tests, etc.)

Separation + 

1 year

29 years, 

years; OR 

Termination 

of Benefits + 

5 years 

(whichever 

is longer) 

Separation + 

30 years, 

years; OR 

Termination 

of Benefits + 

5 years 

(whichever 

is longer) 

Yes:  Until 

Separation

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Files 

maintained separately; Claims can 

be made for 30 years for toxic 

substance exposure; 8 CCR 

§3204(d)(1) et seq., 8 CCR 5144; 

8 CCR 15400.2; 29 CFR 

1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC §§12946, 

60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Personnel 

Services
PER-014

Personnel Files - Official Personnel 

file

(Includes Application, Awards, 

Backgrounds, Employee Action Forms, 

DMV Reports, Disciplinary Actions, 

Certifications, Commendations, 

Evaluations, Grievances, Licenses, Oath 

of Office,  Policy acknowledgements, 

Supplemental Life Insurance, etc.  - 

Excludes Medical Records)    

 Separation 

+ 1 year
9 years

Separation + 

10 years

Yes:  Until 

Separation

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; statute of 

limitations for retirement benefits is 

6 years from last action; 

EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 

3 years for promotion, demotion, 

transfer, selection, or discharge; 

State Law requires 2 -3 years;  29 

CFR 1602.14, 1602.31 & 

1627.3(b)(ii); GC §§12946, 60201; 

29 USC 1113; GC §3105

Personnel 

Services
PER-015

Training Database (Tracks what 

employees have received what 

training)

Indefinite Indefinite Mag, Ppr
Data Fields / Records are 

interrelated; GC §60201

Personnel 

Services
PER-016

Training:  ALL COURSE RECORDS 

/ SYLLABUS, AND ROSTER OF 

ATTENDEES

Minimum 5 

years

Minimum 5 

years
Mag, Ppr

Department preference; Ethics 

Training is 5 years; Statewide 

guidelines propose 7 years; Calif. 

Labor Division is required to keep 

their OSHA records 7 years; 

EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 

3 years for promotion, demotion, 

transfer, selection, or discharge; 

State Law requires 2 -3 years for 

personnel actions;  8 CCR §3203 

et seq., 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(ii), LC 

§6429(c); GC §§12946, 60201, 

53235.2(b); 53237.2(b)

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Personnel 

Services
PER-017 Worker's Compensation Claims Files Close

Separation + 

30 years or 

Termination 

of Benefits + 

5 years, 

whichever is 

longer

Separation + 

30 years or 

Termination 

of Benefits + 

5 years, 

whichever is 

longer

Yes:  Until 

Separation

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Claims 

can be made for 30 years for toxic 

substance exposure; 8 CCR 

10102; 8 CCR 5144; 8 CCR 

15400.2, 8 CCR §3204(d)(1) et 

seq., 29 CFR 1910.1020, GC 

§§12946, 60201. CCP §337 et seq.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Personnel 

Services
PER-018 Claims

Final 

Resolution
5 years

Final 

Resolution + 

5 years

Yes:  Until 

Resolution
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Covers 

various statute of limitations; CCP 

§§ 337 et seq.; GC §§ 911.2, 

945.6,  60201(d)(4)

Personnel 

Services
PER-019 Insurance Policies - ALL

Expiration + 

2 years
P P Yes

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; Covers 

various statute of limitations; CCP 

§§ 337 et seq.; GC §§ 911.2, 

945.6, 60201(d)(4)

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

SAFETY

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-020 Cal-OSHA Inspections & Citations 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Calif. 

Labor Division is required to keep 

their records 7 years; OSHA 

requires 5 years; State law 

requires 2 years; 8 CCR 

14300.33(a); 29 CFR 1904.33, 29 

CFR 1904.44; GC §60201 et seq.; 

LC §6429c 

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-021 Respirator Inventory & Maintenance 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-022
Respiratory Fit Tests for Employee 

Masks

Separation + 

1 year
29 years

Separation + 

30 years

Yes:  Until 

Separation

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Files 

maintained separately; Claims can 

be made for 30 years for toxic 

substance exposure; 8 CCR 

§3204(d)(1) et seq., 8 CCR 5144, 

29 CFR 1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC 

§§12946, 60201

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-023
Permits:  Hazardous Materials 

Storage, other regulatory permits

Expiration + 

3 years

Expiration + 

3 years
Yes

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC

Department Preference;  GC 

§60201

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-024

Business Plans / Hazardous 

Materials Inventory / Disclosures (for 

Local Fire Authorities / Districts)

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr
Department Preference (this is 

performed annually); GC §60201

Maint. & 

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-025
Hazardous Waste Manifests / 

Disposal 
5 years P P

Yes:  Before 

Resolution

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S

Yes: After 

QC'd

Department preference (District 

has "cradle to grave" liability); only 

3 years is mandated; 22 CCR 

66262.40; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-7

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-026

MSDS / SDS Masters (Material 

Safety Data Sheets / Safety Data 

Sheets) / Chemical Use Report Form 

(or records of the chemical / 

substance / agent, where & when it 

was used)

Superseded 

+ 2 years
28 years

Superseded 

+ 30 years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  When 

Inactive

Previous MSDS may be obtained 

from a service; MSDS may be 

destroyed as long as a record of 

the chemical / substance / agent, 

where & when it was used is 

maintained for 30 years; Applies to 

qualified employers; Claims can be 

made for 30 years for toxic 

substance exposures; 8 CCR 

3204(d)(1)(B)(2 and 3), 29 CFR 

910.1020(d)(1)(ii)(B), GC §60201

Maint. & 

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-027
Asbestos Disposal - Chain of 

Custody
2 years P P   

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC'd

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-028
Emergency Exercises / Drills / After 

Action Reports

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Until 

Superseded
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-029
Industrial Hygiene Surveys / 

Sampling Plan, Data
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (actuary 

wants 10 years of data); GC 

§60201 et seq.

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-030
Safety Committee / Safety Steering 

Committee
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 8 CCR 

§3203 et seq.; GC §60201 et seq.

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-031 Safety Inspections 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Calif. 

Labor Division is required to keep 

their records 7 years; OSHA 

requires 5 years; State law 

requires 2 years; 8 CCR 

14300.33(a); 29 CFR 1904.33, 29 

CFR 1904.44; GC §60201 et seq.; 

LC §6429c 

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PERSONNEL SERVICES Page PER-8

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC & 

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-032

Training Database (Tracks what 

employees have received what 

training)

Indefinite Indefinite Mag, Ppr
Data Fields / Records are 

interrelated; GC §60201

Personnel 

Services / 

Safety

PER-033

Training:  ALL COURSE RECORDS 

/ SYLLABUS, AND ROSTER OF 

ATTENDEES

2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; Ethics 

Training is 5 years; Statewide 

guidelines propose 7 years; Calif. 

Labor Division is required to keep 

their OSHA records 7 years; 

EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 

3 years for promotion, demotion, 

transfer, selection, or discharge; 

State Law requires 2 -3 years for 

personnel actions;  8 CCR §3203 

et seq., 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(ii), LC 

§6429(c); GC §§12946, 60201, 

53235.2(b)

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT ©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services Inc. all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   REGULATORY SUPPORT Page REG-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

REGULATORY SUPPORT

Regulatory 

Support
RS-001

Air Quality Monitoring / 

Compliance Reporting
5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; 40 

CFR 70.6; GC §60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-002

CEQA / NEPA Documents:  

Prepared by others for NON-

District Projects

(District comments) 

(Environmental Impact Reports 

(EIRs), Environmental 

Assessments, Negative 

Declarations, etc)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Ppr Non-records; GC §60200

Regulatory 

Support
RS-003

CEQA / NEPA Documents:  

Prepared for District Purposes

(Environmental Impact Reports 

(EIRs), Environmental 

Assessments, Negative 

Declarations, etc)

2 years P P

Yes:  Until 

Project 

Completed

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Usually filed in Project File; 

GC §60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-004 Stakeholder Meetings

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr
District preference; GC 

§60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-005 Classes, Sign-in Sheets 2 years 2 years   Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. RS-006
Correspondence with Regulatory 

Agencies

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 

10 years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 

10 years

Yes:  While 

Active 

Issues

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

District preference; some 

correspondence from 

Regulatory Agencies need 

to be retained for long 

periods of time; GC §60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018 



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   REGULATORY SUPPORT Page REG-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Regulatory 

Support
RS-007

FOG (Fats, Oil & Grease) / 

Source Control / Pretreatment 

Reports / Maintenance / Line 

Cleaning 

3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 

POTW reports are required 

for 3 years; 40 CFR 403.12; 

GC §60201  Monitoring 

records required for 3 years; 

40 CFR §§122.21, 122.41; 

40 CFR 403.12

Regulatory 

Support
RS-008

FOG (Fats, Oil & Grease) FSE - 

Food Service Establishment 

Inspections Sheets

Superseded Superseded Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 

Monitoring records required 

for 3 years; 40 CFR 

§§122.21, 122.41; 40 CFR 

403.12

Regulatory 

Support
RS-009

FOG (Fats, Oil & Grease) 

Permits

Superseded 

+ 3 years

Superseded 

3 years
Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 

Monitoring records required 

for 3 years; 40 CFR 

§§122.21, 122.41; 40 CFR 

403.12

Regulatory 

Support
RS-010

NPDES Permits & Monitoring 

Reports

Minimum 

Expiration + 

3 years

Minimum 

Expiration + 

3 years

Yes
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC

Department Preference; 

NPDES Monitoring records 

required for 3 years in 

Federal law; 40 CFR 

§§122.21, 122.41

Regulatory 

Support
RS-011

Plans: IRWMP (Integrated 

Regional Water Management 

Plan), etc. 

10 years 10 years
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-012

Sanitary Surveys of Drinking 

Water Systems (Open Sources of 

Water - Lake, Open Reservoirs, 

Dams, etc)

10 years 10 years Mag
22 CCR §64470; 40 CFR 

141.33©

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018 



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   REGULATORY SUPPORT Page REG-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                              

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Regulatory 

Support
RS-013

Vulnerability Assessment / 

Emergency Response Plan / Risk 

& Resiliency Assessment / 

Hazard Mitigation Plan

When 

Superseded - 

Minimum 2 

years

When 

Superseded - 

Minimum 2 

years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC

Confidential; 42 USC 300i-

2(d); GC §60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-014

Permits:  DPH, Forest Service, 

etc.

Minimum 

Expiration + 

2 years

Minimum 

Expiration + 

2 years

Yes
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-015 Water Diversion Permits P P Yes

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-016 Water Rights P P Yes

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S No

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Regulatory 

Support
RS-017

Water Supply Permits / Water 

Supply Reports
P P Yes

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC

Department preference; GC 

§60201

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT  ©1995-2017  Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written consent 909.337.3516 Adopted: 6/21/2018 



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE LEGEND 
©1995 – 2019 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved 

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission 

 
 
OFR (Office of Record):  The department that keeps the original or “record copy.”  Usually it is the department that originates the record, unless the item is for 
a Board of Directors meeting (then it is the Board Secretary.) 
 
Records Description:  The record series (a group of like records). 
 
Transitory Records not retained in the ordinary course of business, that do NOT have substantive content: Preliminary drafts, notes, or interagency or intra-
agency memoranda and records having only transitory value.  Examples:  Telephone messages, meeting room reservation schedules, logs, source records 
entered into a computer system that qualifies as a “trusted system”, etc. 
 
Non-Record:  Documents, studies, books and pamphlets produced by outside agencies, preliminary drafts not retained in the ordinary course of business. 
 
Retention/Disposition:  Active:  How long the file remains in the immediate office area (guideline) 
    Inactive:  How long the file is in off-site storage, stored on Optical Disk or Microforms (guideline) 
    Total Retention:  The total number of years the record will be retained 
 

For file folders containing documents with different retention timeframes, use the document with the longest retention time. 
  P = Permanent 
  Indefinite = No fixed or specified retention period; used for databases, because the data fields are interrelated.  
  
 Vital?  = Those records that are needed for basic operations in the event of a disaster. 
 
 Media Options (guideline) – the form of the record:   Mag = Computer Magnetic Media (hard drive, disks, tapes, USB Drives, thumb drives, etc.) 
        Mfr = Microforms (aperture cards, microfilm, microfiche, or jackets)  
        Ppr = Paper   
        OD = Optical Disk, CD-r, DVD-r, WORM, or other media which does not allow changes 
 
 Scan / Import (guideline):   “S” indicates the record should be scanned into the document imaging system; 
     “I” indicates the record should be electronically imported into the document imaging system; 
     “M” indicates the record should be microfilmed 
 

Destroy Paper after Imaged & QC’d:  “Yes” indicates the paper version may be destroyed IF the document has been imaged (electronically 
generated, scanned or imported and placed on Unalterable Media – DVD-R, CD-R, or WORM, or microfilmed), and both the images and indexing 
Quality Checked (“QC’d”).  The electronic record or image must contain all significant details from the original and be an adequate substitute for the 
original document for all purposes, and other legal mandates apply.  Includes all electronic records which are to serve as the Official Record. 

 
Legend for legal citations (§:  Section) B&P:  Business & Professions Code (CA)  CBC:  California Building Code  
CC:  Civil Code (CA)   CCP:  Code of Civil Procedure (CA)   CCR:  California Code of Regulations (CA)   
CFC:  California Fire Code   CFR:  Code of Federal Regulations (US)  EC:  Elections Code (CA)     
EVC:  Evidence Code (CA)  FA:  Food & Agriculture Code   FC:  Family Code (CA)     
FTB:  Franchise Tax Board (CA)  GC:  Government Code (CA)   H&S:  Health & Safety Code (CA)    
HUD:  Housing & Urban Develop. (US) LC:  Labor Code (CA)     Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen..:  Attorney General Opinions (CA)   
PC:  Penal Code (CA)   R&T:  Revenue & Taxation Code (CA)  UFC:  Uniform Fire Code    
USC:  United States Code (US)  VC:  Vehicle Code (CA)    W&I:  Welfare & Institutions Code (CA) 



HOW TO USE RETENTION SCHEDULES 
©1995-2019 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved 

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission 

 

 

A legend explaining the information presented in the retention schedule has been printed on the back of 
each page for your easy reference; an index to locate records is also provided. 

 
The specified retention period applies regardless of the media of the record: If a record is stored on  paper 
and a computer file on a hard drive, both records should be destroyed (or erased) after the specified period 
of time has elapsed. 

 
Copies or duplicates of records should never be retained longer than the prescribed period for the original 
record. 

 
STRUCTURE: CITYWIDE, DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS 

 

The City-wide retention schedule includes those records all departments have in common (letters, 
memorandums, purchase orders, etc.). These records are NOT repeated in the Department retention 
schedule, unless that department is the Office of Record, and therefore responsible for maintaining the 
original record for the prescribed length of time. 

 
Each department has a separate retention schedule that describes the records that are unique to their 
department, or for which they are the Office of Record. Where appropriate, the department retention 
schedules are organized by Division within that Department. If a record is not listed in your department 
retention schedule, refer to the City-wide retention schedule. An index will be provided for  your  reference. 

 
BENEFITS 

 

This retention schedule has been developed by Diane R. Gladwell, MMC, an expert in Municipal 
Government records, and will provide the City with the following benefits: 

 
• Reduce administrative expenses, expedite procedures 
• Free filing cabinet and office space 
• Reduce the cost of records storage 
• Eliminate duplication of effort within the City 
• Find records faster 
• Easier purging of file folders 
• Determine what media should be used to store records 

For questions, please contact the  City  Clerk. 

AUTHORIZATION TO DESTROY RECORDS: 

Destruction of an original record that has exceeded its retention period must be authorized according to 
City Policies & Procedures prior to destroying it. 

• If there is a minimum retention (“Minimum 2 years"), destruction of the document must be 
authorized before it is destroyed, as it is an original record. 

 

Copies, drafts, notes and non-records do NOT require authorization, and can be destroyed “When No 
Longer Required.” 

• If there is NOT a minimum retention ("When No Longer Required"), it does NOT need to be 
authorized prior to destruction, as it is a preliminary draft / transitory record or a copy. 

 

On every page of the schedules (near the top, just under the column headings) are important instructions, 

including instructions regarding holds on destroying records. “Litigation, complaints, claims, public 
records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention 
resumes after settlement or completion).” 



 Agenda Item:  C-5 
 09-17-2020 

Page 1 of 1 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM 

 
Subject:   Appointment of Ad Hoc Committees   

a) General Manager Performance Evaluation   
b) Labor Negotiations  

 
Information Provided By:   Stephanie Hake, Executive Assistant 
 

Requested Action 
 
The General Manager’s annual performance evaluation is due to be completed in October. Additionally, the 
MOU with the District’s labor union, International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 12, is due to expire in 
March 2021. Therefore, staff are requesting that the Board President appoint two ad hoc committees; one 
for the General Manager’s performance evaluation and one for upcoming labor negotiations.      

 


	2020-09-17 Agenda-Reg Brd Meeting
	2020-09-16 Agenda - Finance Committee Meeting
	2020-09-16 Agenda - Technical Services Committee Meeting
	A-1 Accounts Payable Detail 08-2020
	Check Register Summary
	Check Register 08-2020
	July Visa Transactions 07-2020

	A-2 2020-08-20 Minutes - Reg BoD Meeting Draft
	B-1 Operations Department Report 09-2020
	B-2 Maintenance Department Report 09-2020
	B-3 Finance Department Report 09-2020
	CAM Investment Transactions 2020-08

	B-4 Engineering Department Report 09-2020
	Engineering Map Exhibit 09-2020

	B-5 Information Services Report 09-2020
	B-6 Personnel Services Report 09-2020
	B-7 Regulatory Support Services Report 09-02020
	B-8 General Manager's Report 09-2020
	C-1 Stories in the Snow Presentation
	Stories in the Snow Mammoth Proposal - Winter 20-21
	Stories_in_the_Snow_Curriculum Summary
	How to use your kit

	C-2 SR - EHPAP Request to Refinance Loan MJ
	C-3 2020 Lease Extension 2009 Agreement USGS-MCWD
	USGS-MP-453 2020 MCWD Supplemental Lease Agreement
	2009-07-01 Lease Agreement USGS-MCWD Antenna Lease

	C-4 Update Records Retention Schedules
	Records Retention Schedules - Track Changes
	2020-Update-Conservation
	2020-Update-DISTRICT WIDE
	2020-Update-Engineering, Permits20
	2020-Update-Finance, Customer Service, Payroll, Purchasing
	2020-Update-General Manager, District Secretary
	2020-Update-Information Technology
	2020-Update-Maintenance
	2020-Update-Operations
	2020-Update-Personnel Services
	2020-Update-Regulatory Support
	2020-Update-Retention Legend 
	2020-Update-How to Use Retention Schedules


	C-5 Agenda Summary - Ad Hoc Committee Appointments



